Public Document Pack

C\";GDII .
e i1y Flint
I " Contact Officer:
Eﬁ!!ﬂrtigbnl re Sharon Thomas 01352 702324

sharon.b.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

To: CliIr Clive Carver (Chairman)

Councillors: Marion Bateman, Paul Cunningham, Peter Curtis, Andy Dunbobbin,
Robin Guest, Ron Hampson, Richard Jones, Ray Hughes, Brian Lloyd,
Vicky Perfect, Paul Shotton, lan Smith, Nigel Steele-Mortimer and Arnold Woolley

10 June 2016
Dear Councillor
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny
Committee which will be held at 10.00 am on Thursday, 16th June, 2016 in the Delyn
Committee Room, County Hall, Mold CH7 6NA to consider the following items

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES
Purpose: To receive any apologies.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING
DECLARATIONS)

Purpose: To receive any Declarations and advise Members accordingly.

3 MINUTES (Pages 5 - 16)

Purpose: To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on
12 May 2016 (copy enclosed).

4  COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2017/18 (Pages 17 - 30)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager and Chief Executive enclosed.
Portfolio of the Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance.

Purpose: To update the Committee on the financial forecast for the
2017/18 financial year and present
(1) the budget pressures and proposed efficiencies for
corporate financial stewardship and
(2) the budget pressures and proposed efficiencies corporate
services for 2017/18 as the third and final year of the current
portfolio business planning cycle.

1



REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 12) (Pages 31 - 64)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager enclosed. Portfolio of the Leader of the
Council and Cabinet Member for Finance.

Purpose: To provide Members with the latest revenue budget monitoring
information for 2015/16 for the Council Fund and Housing
Revenue Account based on actual income and expenditure as
at month 12 and projected forward to year-end based on the
most up to date information available

PROJECT CLOSURE ON REVIEW OF CORPORATE ADMINISTRATION
(Pages 65 - 68)

Report of Chief Officer (Governance) enclosed. Portfolio of the Cabinet
Member for Corporate Management.

Purpose: That Committee provides comments on savings and benefits
delivered by the project and the proposed steps to close the
project.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 69 - 76)

Report of Member Engagement Manager enclosed.

Purpose: To consider the Forward Work Programme of the Corporate
Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 -TO
CONSIDER THE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following items are considered to be exempt by virtue of Paragraph(s) 15
of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

It is not good employment practice or in the public interest for matters the
subject of consultation with employees affected and other unions to be
discussed in public at this stage of the process.

ESTABLISHMENT STRUCTURE IN GOVERNANCE (Pages 77 - 84)

Report of Chief Officer (Governance) enclosed. Portfolio of the Cabinet
Member for Corporate Management.

Purpose: To comment on changes to the establishment structure in the
Governance portfolio.



REVIEW OF CORPORATE ADMINISTRATIVE FUNCTIONS (Pages 85 - 90)

Report of Chief Officer (Governance) enclosed. Portfolio of the Cabinet
Member for Corporate Management.

Purpose: To comment on the proposed functions and structure to
Cabinet for consideration at its meeting on 21 June 2016.

Yours faithfully

P

T

Peter Evans
Democracy & Governance Manager



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
12 MAY 2016

Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee of the Flintshire County Council held at County Hall, Mold on
Thursday, 12 May 2016

PRESENT: Councillor Clive Carver (Chairman)
Councillors: Andy Dunbobbin, Robin Guest, Richard Jones, Brian Lloyd, Vicky
Perfect, Paul Shotton, lan Smith, and Arnold Woolley

SUBSTITUTIONS:

Councillor Haydn Bateman for Marion Bateman, Dave Cox for Paul
Cunningham, lan Dunbar for Ron Hampson and Adele Davies-Cooke for Nigel
Steele-Mortimer

APOLOGY:
Councillor Ray Hughes

CONTRIBUTORS:

Councillor Aaron Shotton — Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Finance, Chief Executive, Chief Officer (Governance)

Policy and Performance Manager for minute numbers 5 and 6, Mr. Colin
Evans from the Community Foundation in Wales for minute number 5,
Finance Manager — Strategy Accounting and Systems for minute numbers 7
and 9

Senior Manager — Human Resources and Organisational Development for
minute number 8

IN ATTENDANCE:
Member Engagement Manager and Committee Officer

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR

The Member Engagement Manager advised that it had been confirmed
at the County Council Annual meeting that the Chair of this Committee be
allocated to the Conservative Group. The nomination from the Group had
been for Councillor Clive Carver. On being put to the vote, the nomination
was confirmed.

RESOLVED:

That Councillor Clive Carver be confirmed as Chair for the Committee for the
municipal year.

APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR

The Chair sought nominations for the appointment of Vice-Chair.
Councillor Richard Jones was nominated by Councillor Robin Guest but he
declined the nomination. The Chairman proposed Councillor Arnold Woolley

Page 5



and this was duly seconded. On being put to the vote, the nomination was
carried.

RESOLVED:

That Councillor Arnold Woolley be appointed as Vice-Chair for the Committee
for the municipal year.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were made.
MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 14t April 2016
had been circulated to Members with the agenda.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the
Chairman.

COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND — ANNUAL REPORT

The Policy & Performance Manager introduced a report to provide
Members with an update on the progress and performance of the Fund since
it was last reported in March 2015. She also introduced Mr. Colin Evans, an
Associate of the Community Foundation in Wales who was present at the
meeting to provide a presentation on the performance of the fund.

Mr. Evans detailed the background to the report and explained that this
was the third presentation on the performance of the fund. He provided a
detailed presentation which covered the following areas:-

e The Flintshire Community Endowment Fund
Introduction and Overview

The Community Foundation in Wales — news

Fund history and overview

Financial performance of the fund

Analysis of grant awards and added value for Flintshire
Additional services for Local Authorities

Questions and agreed actions

The Chairman and the Chief Executive thanked Mr. Evans for his
presentation.

In welcoming the presentation, Councillor Paul Shotton acknowledged
the excellent return of 10.9% since the assets were transferred to the
Foundation and the further added value totalling £320,000 that had supported
67 projects in Flintshire since 2012. He commented on the success of the

Page 6



Fund and particularly welcomed the help that had been provided to the
Flintshire Foodbank and the Domestic Abuse Safety Unit in Deeside. In
referring to the partnership with Asda to deliver its community grant-making
programme, Councillor Shotton asked if there were opportunities for other
large companies to take up a similar role in the future. He also commented on
the Flintshire, Denbighshire and Wrexham Welsh Church Act Funds and
provided his support for the recommendation to take this aspect forward for
further investigation.

Councillor lan Dunbar felt that it was pleasing to see that the grants
had been made to a variety of individuals and projects and highlighted in
particular the grant of £750 awarded to a Girl Guide in the Senior Section at
Wepre Guide Unit. He sought clarification on the work on Vital Signs and Mr.
Evans explained about the initiative which concentrated on what was needed
in local communities. He spoke of the work undertaken in the network of 48
community foundations which covered all parts of the UK and said that the
award of every grant was followed up and the response assessed to ensure
compliance with the terms of the grant and to measure the impact of the
grants on individuals and communities. Mr. Evans spoke of the desire to be
able to share details of the successes of the Community Endowment with
local businesses to try and encourage them to invest so that more grants
could be awarded in the future. He referred to a number of other themes that
it was hoped the award of grants could be used for.

Councillor Brian Lloyd referred to a meeting that he had attended
where one of the recipients of a grant had been present. The young person
had been very thankful for the contribution made to allow them to take part in
an event that they would otherwise have had to miss. Mr. Evans welcomed
the feedback from Councillor Lloyd. In welcoming the report and presentation,
Councillor Andy Dunbobbin asked what plans were in place to increase the
awareness of the Flintshire Community Endowment Fund across the County.
Mr. Evans explained that the funds currently shared a core theme of
education and that in the future, it was hoped that different areas or themes
could be considered. Information was available on the Council’s website and
he welcomed the opportunity to be able to carry out presentations such as this
to share the work of the Community Endowment Fund. Councillor Richard
Jones welcomed the monitoring of how the grant had been used and the
impact its award had made and sought clarification on how this was achieved.
Mr. Evans explained that all recipients of grants were advised that they would
need to let the Community Endowment Fund know how the money had been
spent and the information was then included on a database to provide
information on the use of the grants. He added that if the information was not
forthcoming from the recipients, then they were precluded from applying again
in the future.

Councillor Arnold Woolley thanked Mr. Evans for the clear and concise
report and presentation and, in referring to his role as Chair of the Flintshire
District Scouts Executive, gave thanks for the award of grants which had been
of great assistance to those concerned.

Page 7



In response to a question from Councillor Paul Shotton, Mr. Evans
spoke about the initial value of the endowment on transfer of £178,998 which
was ring-fenced as a long-term source of funding to support education in
Flintshire. However, the fund had eight different themes which it was hoped
future donations would be able to assist with.

Councillor Richard Jones proposed the recommendation in the report
but Councillor Robin Guest felt that it should include congratulations to the
Community Foundation in Wales for their work. On being put to the vote, this
was agreed.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the Community Foundation in Wales be congratulated for the work
which they have undertaken and thanked for the distribution of local
grants; and

(b)  That the Committee supports further investigation into the transfer of
the Welsh Church Act Funds for Flintshire, Denbighshire and Wrexham
to the Community Endowment Fund for Wales.

IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2016/17

The Chief Executive introduced a report on the Improvement Plan for
2016/17 which had been refreshed and updated to reflect the key priorities of
the Council for next year. The Improvement Plan was to be submitted to
meetings of Cabinet and County Council on 14 June 2016.

Following a presentation of the initial draft to Cabinet on 19 April 2016,
relevant sections of the Improvement Plan were being presented to Overview
& Scrutiny Committees for consultation and input, along with the proposed
targets for the national performance indicators. This Committee had the
opportunity to comment on the Improvement Plan as a whole and more
specifically on the ‘Modern and Efficient Council’ priority which included areas
within the terms of reference of the Committee.

The Policy and Performance Manager explained that the main change
within the ‘Modern and Efficient Council’ priority was within the ‘Developing
Communities’ sub-priority for 2016/17 and built on work that had been
completed in 2015/16 with support for local communities; details were
provided in paragraph 1.09. She also highlighted the sub-priority of
‘Improving Resource Management’ and explained that this also built on issues
that had been considered in the previous year particularly in the area of
efficiencies.

Councillor Paul Shotton supported the Plan and commented on the
provision the living wage for care providers which was a national issue
affecting all Councils and the ongoing work to deliver a proactive housing
solutions service to prevent homelessness for as many households as
possible. He also welcomed the project to bring empty homes back into use

Page 8



and spoke of a scheme in his ward which had seen the development of a
building that had previously been a public house which was now being
converted into flats. Councillor Shotton also commented on the securing of
funding through the Major Repairs Allowance (MRA).

The Chief Executive confirmed that the ongoing MRA funding was a
significant resource for the Council to meet the Welsh Housing Quality
Standard by 2020. On the issue of care homes, he commented on the
Special Social and Health Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee that had been
held to consider the Residential Care Review. Discussions were taking place
with Welsh Government on the declining funding for the care home sector and
the need to identify workable solutions. The issue of funding had also been
raised with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) on the Interim
Care Fund and whether this could be used to fund the cost of meeting
increases in domiciliary care. He added that the issue of care home provision
in Flintshire was a high priority.

Councillor Richard Jones said that he had a number of questions that
he would send to the Chief Executive and the Policy and Performance
Manager. He commented on the importance of providing support for people
with dementia and queried why the areas of economy and enterprise had
been included under one priority when they had previously been reported
separately. The Chief Executive explained that this was because the two
areas of economy and enterprise fitted well together and allowed for
consolidation of the plan.

RESOLVED:
That the Committee endorses and supports:-

(i) the content of the improvement plan and ‘How we measure
achievement’ document for the priority ‘Modern and Efficient
Council’

(ii) the strategic approach to the Improvement Plan and its delivery

(i)  the proposed targets for the national performance indicators

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2016/17 — 2018/19 AND THE
COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2017/18

The Chief Executive introduced a report to provide Members with
updated information on the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for
2016/17 — 2018/19.

The first year of the MTFS for 2015/16 had been agreed and published
in 2015 and the next version had been considered by Cabinet on 19 April
2016 and covered the period 2016/17 - 2018/19. This was significant as 2019
was the year intended by the outgoing Welsh Government (WG) for the
election of shadow authorities as a first step towards the re-organisation of
local government in Wales. The financial forecast for 2017/18 to 2018/19 was
constantly changing and paragraph 1.05 provided details of a revised forecast

Page 9



totalling £17.20m. However, a number of footnotes for issues that were being
considered but not yet known had been included, such as the impact of Social
Care transition costs and the assumption of a 3% rise in Council Tax. The
Chief Executive reminded Members that clarity from WG had not been
received for longer term funding and therefore assumptions had been broadly
made based on figures from the previous year. The Council had adopted a
three part strategy of:-

e Service Reform
e Corporate Financial Stewardship; and
e Working with Welsh Government

It had been recommended that Cabinet continue with the strategy and work
on service portfolio business plans would be shared with Overview & Scrutiny
Committees in June 2016. The Chief Executive emphasised the importance
of demonstrating to WG how efficient, resilient and high performing the
Council was, despite being such a low funded authority. He spoke of the risks
involved in receiving reduced funding and the discussions that were ongoing
particularly about the charging cap for social care and the lower share of
funding that the Council received based on demographics and deprivation.
He also commented on the Independent Commission for Local Government
Finance in Wales report which recommended that Councils would be able to
retain National Non Domestic Rate (NNDR) income growth.

The Finance Manager — Strategy Accounting and Systems advised that
the footnotes shown in the tables included assumptions and reiterated that the
information was constantly changing. The figures for 2018/19 were currently
low but the figures would increase as a result of the significant amount of work
that was ongoing.

Councillor Richard Jones indicated that he had difficulty in supporting
the third part of the strategy to lobby WG as he felt that any results could not
be relied upon to support the budget. He spoke of the hard work by Members
and officers and said that he was not implying that it was not a good idea to
work with WG but it was the reliance to bridge the gap that he was
uncomfortable about supporting. The Chief Executive said that the Council
was not at this stage relying on any assistance from WG but wanted to be
able to take forward a strategy that could provide help particularly in areas
such as reductions in Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and the Social Care
sector. He commented on the alternative service cost reduction proposals
that would need to be re-considered if support could not be provided by WG
and added that having a gap in the working budget was a significant risk.

Councillor Robin Guest spoke of the concerns raised by Councillor
Jones and welcomed the inclusion of the third strand to the strategy which
would enable discussions to be held with WG. He said that some Members
had been sceptical previously because it had been felt that asking for help
was unrealistic. He acknowledged that the approach taken for 2016/17 had
resulted in a better than expected outcome.

Page 10



Councillor Aaron Shotton recognised the concern about some of the
assumptions made in the figures such as a 1.5% reduction in the RSG.
However, he spoke about the continued approach that was needed on
discussions with WG. The business plan projections for 2016/17 of £7.7m
had not yet been agreed and he said that if these were not supportable
options, then the efficiencies figures could potentially reduce. He reminded
Members that the Council did not take decisions lightly particularly in relation
to reducing or closing services and spoke of the impact on communities if the
Council was not able to provide a balanced budget. The Chief Executive
spoke of the funding formulas and the flexibility that could be considered by
WG to ensure that all Councils were funded fairly. He commented on the
Intermediate Care Fund provision and the extra £50m that had been made
available by WG and highlighted other areas where additional monies could
be retained by Councils, such as the NNDR for new businesses. He felt that
this was an opportunity for the Authority to put a robust and well evidenced
lobbying case to WG.

In supporting the recommendation, Councillor Arnold Woolley
commented on the issue of finance at WG and said that it was important to
lobby WG both individually and collectively. Councillor Richard Jones spoke
of additional monies that had been provided by WG to the Health Board at a
time when the Council was seeking assistance and that was why he had been
unable to support the suggestion of lobbying WG. Councillor Paul Shotton
said that he hoped that there would be a positive response from WG and
welcomed the comment from Councillor Woolley about all party lobbying.

Councillor Guest sought clarification on local government reform and
whether this was still to be progressed following the departure of Leighton
Andrews as the Minister for Public Services. He felt that any reforms would
have an impact on the MTFS. Councillor A. Shotton said there was currently
no party with overall control of WG and that it was assumed that discussions
would take place in due course on whether the proposals would continue. He
also spoke of the collective weight that needed to be applied to the lobbying
case to WG and spoke of a grant that had been made available to some rural
authorities following concerted pressure by others.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee endorses the framework for the revision of the Medium
Term Financial Strategy 2016/17 — 2018/19

USE OF AGENCY WORKERS

The Senior Manager — Human Resources and Organisational
Development introduced a report to provide Members with a detailed overview
of the use of Agency Workers and associated costs.

The report had been prepared following a request for further
information at the previous meeting of the Committee. The Senior Manager

Page 11



advised that the appendix to the report provided details of the costs
associated with agency placements.

Councillor Paul Shotton thanked the officers for the information and
said that there would always be a requirement for the use of agency workers
particularly in Social Services and Streetscene. The Chairman sought
clarification on the figures in the appendix, particularly on Council comparative
costs against the Agency Worker Regulations pay rates as it appeared that it
was more cost effective to employ agency staff rather than permanent
employees. The Senior Manager spoke of the risks that would be associated
with only employing agency staff and commented on the liability issues once
they had been employed for more than 11 weeks. She provided an
explanation on the rates in the appendix that attracted an overtime premium
and those that did not. The Chief Executive confirmed that agency workers
were only used in a small number of areas of the Council and that it would not
be sustainable to only employ agency workers; he added that this would also
be challenged by the Trade Unions.

Councillor Aaron Shotton spoke of previous discussions on agency
workers where it had been suggested that this was an expensive way of
employing staff, but the figures did not seem to reflect that. However, he
added that ethically, it was better to employ permanent staff to continue the
quality of service and ensure loyalty.

Following a comment from the Chairman, the Senior Manager provided
a detailed explanation of the figures shown in the appendix to the report and
the Chief Executive added that the agency was not paid to meet employer
pension costs. In response to a query from the Chairman about some of the
figures in the appendix particularly for the Day Care Assistant and the
Household Recycling Centre Assistant, the Senior Manager said that she
would seek clarification on the figures. Councillor Richard Jones referred to
the moral rather than financial issue and concurred that it was better to
employ permanent staff rather than agency workers. Councillor lan Smith
also asked about the figures for Catering Assistants which were reported to be
£7.20 per hour for weeks 1 to 11 and reducing to £6.44 from week 12. The
Senior Manager advised that this could be because the data had not been
updated but added that she would seek clarification.

Councillor Arnold Woolley welcomed the reduction in levels of agency
staff use to a more appropriate and acceptable level but queried whether such
a change could have been put in place sooner, as the issue of the use of
agency workers had first been challenged in 2006. The Chief Executive
concurred but commented on Flintshire being the first authority to work with
other authorities to put the Matrix contract in place for the provision of agency
workers which had helped to reduce costs. Councillor Woolley felt that the
Council would always need some agency workers.

In referring to the recommendation, the Chair suggested that the word

‘review’ be replaced with the word ‘recognises’. This was proposed by
Councillor Paul Shotton and duly seconded.

Page 12



RESOLVED:

That the Committee recognises the position of the Council as an employer in
using agency workers sparingly and appropriately.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16

The Finance Manager — Strategy Accounting and Systems introduced
a report to provide Members with the Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16
(Month 11) report for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
which was to be submitted to Cabinet on 17 May 2016.

For the Council Fund, the projected net in-year expenditure was
forecast to be £1.574m lower than budget which was a positive move of
£0.464m from Month 10. Appendix 1 detailed the movements from Month 10
which were across all portfolios.

Appendix 3 provided details of the latest position of the programme of
efficiencies and it was projected that £10.623m (83%) would be achieved
resulting in a net underachievement of £2.251m; this had already been
reflected in the outturn. It was reported that £0.125m for food and pay
inflation was no longer required. Taking into account previous allocations and
the current underspend at Month 11, the balance on the Contingency Reserve
at 31 March 2016 was projected to be £5.210m. The previous allocation for
investment in organisational change was now fully committed therefore it was
recommended that £0.750m was set aside to renew investment to save funds
to support future organisational change; if approved this would reduce the
balance on contingency reserve to £4.460m. Details of carry forward requests
were included in appendix 6 and were recommended for approval by Cabinet.

The Month 11 Monitoring report for the HRA was projecting in year
expenditure to be £0.092m lower than budget and a projected closing balance
as at 31 March 2016 of £1.330m which at 4.3% of total expenditure satisfied
the prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

Councillor Richard Jones sought clarification on the future
organisational change projects that would be supported by the £0.750m set
aside to renew the invest to save funds. The Chief Executive explained that
the funds could be used for a variety of areas and that bids would need to be
made for the funding, supported by a business case. Councillor Jones
referred to a number of departments where he felt that staffing had been
reduced which could have an impact on the service. The Chief Executive
spoke about resilience within services.

In referring to the volatility of the recycling market, Councillor Paul
Shotton asked whether it was anticipated that there would be an improvement
in the future. The Chief Executive said that an up-turn in rates for the sale
value of recyclable goods such as glass and plastic was not expected.

Page 13



10.

Councillor Arnold Woolley expressed concern about the growing
number of items that were being carried forward and queried whether this was
as a result of reducing the workforce. He suggested that it would be helpful
for Members to have information on the number of items carried forward and
their value for the same time in 2015/16 and 2016/17 so that Members could
compare the details. The Finance Manager — Strategy Accounting and
Systems advised that there had not been an increase in the number of items
being proposed to carry forward but added that she would obtain the
information that had been requested. She explained that the requests for
carry forward were for works that had started in 2015/16 but had not been
able to be completed before the end of the financial year. The Chief
Executive confirmed that the requests were not as a result of capacity or
organisational change. Following a comment from Councillor lan Smith, the
Finance Manager advised that the figures in appendix 6 were currently
showing as underspends because the work on each of the projects had not
yet been completed; she added that the spend had been accounted for in the
outturn for 2015/16.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 11) report be
received; and

(b)  That the Committee confirms that it is not making any formal
recommendations to Cabinet on this occasion.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Member Engagement Manager introduced the report to consider
the Forward Work Programme for the Committee.

He provided details of the items for consideration at the 16" June 2016
meeting and advised that a report on the Use of Consultants would also be
submitted to that meeting. The Member Engagement Manager also
highlighted the reports that would be considered at the 14t July meeting. The
Annual Report for the Community Safety Partnership would be submitted to
either the July or September 2016 meetings of the Committee as the statutory
Crime & Disorder Committee. The 2016/17 diary had also now been agreed
and items for consideration at each meeting would be populated for the year.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Forward Work Programme, as amended at the meeting, be
approved; and

(b)  That the Member Engagement Manager, in consultation with the Chair,

Vice-Chair and officers, be authorised to vary the work programme
between meetings.

Page 14



11. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the public or press in attendance.

(The meeting started at 10.00am and ended at 12.13 pm)

Chairman

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

Sir y Fflint
"ﬂm}o%!z.ire

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Thursday, 16 June 2016
Report Subject Council Fund Revenue Budget 2017/18
Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance
Report Author Corporate Finance Manager and Chief Executive
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Committee has the dual role of scrutinising and commenting on the annual
budget of the Council as a whole, and the budget proposals for the corporate
services which are within its remit. The Committee has been presented with an
outline of the revised Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for the three year
period 2016/17-2018/19 previously.

This report updates the financial forecast for the 2017/18 financial year and
presents:-

e the budget pressures and main areas of income and expenditure under
review for corporate financial stewardship; and

e the budget pressures and proposed efficiencies for the corporate services for
2017/18 as the third and final year of the current portfolio business planning
cycle.

The original forecast for the 2017/18 financial year, the third and final year of the
current MTFS, set a likely ‘gap’ between the total spending requirement and
anticipated income of £13.7M. The ‘gap’ is in effect the total which has to be found
in efficiencies, service cost reductions, and income growth as part of annual budget
planning. This forecast has been revised at regular intervals based on more recent
budget developments at a national and a local level. The latest forecast presents, at
this stage, a working ‘gap’ of £8.1M between the forecast ‘gap’ and the combined
total of working corporate and service portfolio efficiency proposals of £6.3M.
Cabinet has endorsed the developing portfolio business plans and corporate
financial stewardship plans for early consultation with the Overview and Scrutiny
Committees.

Page 17



The Council has re-adopted a three part strategy of addressing the financial ‘gap’
each year:-

e Service Reform;
e Corporate Financial Stewardship; and
e Working with Welsh Government.

A presentation will be made to Council on 14 June on the developing plans for the
third part of the strategy Working with Welsh Government.

All Overview and Scrutiny Committees are being consulted on the development of
the Council Fund Budget for 2017/18 throughout the June and July Committee
cycles. The Community and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny Committee is also
being consulted on the Housing Revenue Account.

The following tables and appendices are included within the report:-

Table 1: Revised Financial Forecast for 2017/18-2018/19
Table 2: Summary of Corporate Cost Pressures

Table 3: Service Portfolio Business Plan Projections 2017/18

Tables 4a and 4b: Summary of Corporate Services Portfolio Cost Pressures and
Proposed Efficiencies

Appendix 1: Detailed Corporate Services Portfolio Business Plan Proposed
Efficiencies

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Committee comments on the corporate cost pressures and main areas of
income and expenditure under review for 2017/18, and indicates its level of
support for the proposals;

2 Committee comments on the Corporate Services Portfolio Business Plan
cost pressures and proposed efficiencies for 2017/18, and indicates its level
of support for the proposals; and

3 Committee provides advice on the developing strategy for the 2017/18
budget, and the process and timelines for setting the annual budget, in its
wider role of corporate financial governance.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | Medium Term Financial Strategy 2016/17-2018/19

1.01

The Council has set a cycle of reviewing its Medium Term Financial Strategy
(MTFS) on an annual basis. Within this cycle the annually updated MTFS is to
be set for a three year period which combines the financial year in-hand with

Page 18




the two financial years to follow. The first new style MTFS published in mid and
late 2015, in two parts, was accordingly for the period 2015/16-2017/18. The
revised version of the MTFS for the period 2016/17-2018/19 is being
developed in stages. The Committee has previously received a first report on
the developing MTFS.

The Revised Financial Forecast

1.02

The original forecast for the 2017/18 financial year, the third and final year of
the current published MTFS, set a likely ‘gap’ between the total spending
requirement and anticipated income of £13.7M. This forecast has been
revised based on more recent budget developments at a national and a local
level. Key variables within this initial forecast are the eventual local government
financial settlement for 2017/18, local Council Tax levels, standard and non-
standard inflation patterns, and emergent national and local cost pressures.
The revised forecast as set out in Table 1 below shows a starting ‘gap’ between
anticipated income and predicted cost pressures of £14.4m. A longer-term
forecast has been added for the 2018/19 financial year to complete the three
year picture.

1.03

Table 1: Revised Financial Forecast 2017/18-2018/19

2017/18 2018/19

Expenditure £m £m
National Pressures 0.7 0.3
Local Pressures 6.2 1.6
Inflation 3.1 3.2
Workforce Pressures 4.1 0.7
Income

Reduction in Revenue Support Grant 2.8 2.7
Council Tax increase (2.5) (2.3)
Projected Gap 14.40 6.20

Footnotes to Table 1:

1. Revenue Support Grant for 2017/18 and 2018/19 is modelled on an illustrative
reduction of 1.5%

2. National and local pressures are working estimates based on latest information. The
latest revision includes initial estimates of the sizeable increase in care sector costs,
and insurance costs

3. Pay inflation is assumed at 1% for 2017/18 and 2018/19

4. Limited provision is made for price inflation

5. Workforce pressures include the ongoing impact of Single Status, Auto-enrolment, the
Apprentice Tax Levy and the outcome of the Clwyd Pension Fund Actuarial Review

6. Council Tax is illustrated at a 3% annual increase for 2017/18 and 2018/19

7. The initial 2018/19 forecast does not include the impact of any changes in social care
transition costs or the longer term impacts of the Living Wage on Council workforce
costs.

1.04

Any forecast can only be predictive based on the most reliable available
intelligence, and working assumptions, based on past experience. This latest
forecast is subject to change through the decisions of decision-makers such
as Governments, the impacts of national fiscal policies, economic trends, and

Page 19




changes in supply and demand markets for goods and services in a turbulent
global economy. National fiscal policy is subject to change as demonstrated
in the most recent budget of the Chancellor of the Exchequer and the
authoritative economic forecasts of bodies such as the Office of Budget
Responsibility and the Institute of Fiscal Studies; local government in Wales
has not yet been given an indicative financial settlement to work with by the
incoming Welsh Government; unfunded annual workforce cost pressures
compound year on year; significant unfunded cost pressures continue to build
in the social care sector. There is a high degree of unpredictability in planning
due to external circumstances beyond the control of the Council.

Meeting the Financial Challenge

1.05

The Council has adopted an MTFS which took a principled but high risk
approach to finding solutions to the unprecedented level of budget savings to
be found in 2016/17. Flintshire, as a relatively low funded council under the
local government funding formula, and one faced with a funding ‘gap’ of up to
£20M in a single year, had limited options to find solutions without Welsh
Government offering some reprieve from the scale of national funding
reductions (for Revenue Support Grant and specific grants) first forecast. The
Council adopted a three part strategy of:-

. Service Reform;
. Corporate Financial Stewardship; and
. Working with Welsh Government.

1.06

Without some reprieve over the level of national funding reductions the Council
would have faced a position of having to withdraw key services (such as
economic development and business support), closing local facilities some of
which were at a mid-point of transition to alternative delivery models (such as
leisure centres) and reducing funding support to mandatory services (such as
education and social services). Such decisions would not only have been
unsupportable by councillors and local communities alike but would have
compromised the achievement of the Council’s Improvement Priorities. Such
funding reductions could possibly have undermined the ability of the Council
to meet its mandatory duties in full. The Council was eventually able to set a
balanced budget for 2016/17 through following this three part strategy, and
with a higher level of risk-taking than in previous years. As is shown in this
report support will be needed from Welsh Government for Flintshire in 2017/18
due to the size of the working gap between the forecast financial ‘gap’ and the
combined total of corporate and service portfolio efficiency proposals. Other
councils will be in a similar position particularly those with low funding per
capita under the current Local Government Funding Formula.

1.07

Cabinet has since readopted this three part strategy. This will involve:-

e continuing to reduce costs and increase income through service reform
as a central theme of the service portfolio business plans;

e continuing to control and reduce corporate costs through careful
planning and stewardship; and

e working with Welsh Government to maintain sufficient levels of national
funding for local government and for Flintshire, reforming the local
government funding system to _give councils greater financial freedom

Page 20




and flexibility, and properly funding nationally set policies for services
and welfare benefits which councils have to administer. A presentation
will be made to Council on 14 June on this ongoing work as part of the
response to the report and recommendations of the Independent
Commission on Local Government Finance in Wales.

2.00

Corporate Financial Stewardship and Planning

2.01

The main areas of income and expenditure that are subject to ongoing review

Revenue Support Grant retention;

national specific grants reform and income retention;

local taxation policy;

a corporate income policy covering all current and potential fees and
charges and the levels at which they are set;

general price and above standard inflation;

pay inflation ;

pensions reform and the implications of the imminent triennial review of
the Clwyd Pension Fund by the Fund Actuary, and the employer funding
contributions to be made;

level of investment in school funding formula

capital financing revenue contributions;

Treasury Management and investment income;

the use of reserves and balances;

invest to save revenue provision;

assessment of national and local cost pressures; and

the ongoing management and review of the 2016/17 budget and any
future year impacts of its final out-turn.

2.02

The corporate cost pressures in the stewardship and management of the
Council finances are set out in Table 2 below.

2.03

Table 2: Summary of Corporate Cost Pressures

2017/18 2018/19

Corporate Cost Pressures £m £m

Commercial Property Pressure 0.386 0
MRP/Prudential Borrowing 0.729 0.100
Repayment of reserve 16/17 1.429 0
Actuarial Pensions Review 1.300 0
Apprentice Tax 0.470 0
Auto Enrolment 0.558 0.559
Single Status 1.726 0.200
Inflation 3.100 3.200
Total Corporate Cost Pressures 9.698 4.059

Footnotes to Table 2:

N

Inflation and single status figures include schools

Inflation includes a limited amount of provision for price inflation

All cost pressures are subject to ongoing refinement and review

Triennial Actuarial Pensions Valuation underway-to be completed for 2017

Page 21




3.00

Portfolio Business Planning

Service Portfolio Business Plans

3.01

The service portfolio business plans have been developed with options for the
period 2015/16-2017/18. Based on current work there are supportable options
with potential for a further round of annualised efficiencies, service cost
reductions and income growth in the region of £6.3M as shown in Table 2
below. The total value of these proposals has reduced by £1.6M since the
report made to Committee in April. This is a result of a detailed review of a
challenge process on the acceptability and the workability of proposals, and
their likely efficiency yield, and also through early engagement with Overview
and Scrutiny Committees on specific service change options.

3.02

Table 3: Service Portfolio Business Plan Projections 2017/18
2016/17 2017/18
Portfolio £m £m

Planning & Environment 0.413 0.205

Street-scene & Transportation 2.158 1.900

Social Care 0.838 0.690
Education & Youth 0.710 0.873

Organisational Change 1.272 0.943

Community & Enterprise 1.509 0.807

Corporate Services 0.855 0.903

Total 7.755 6.321

Footnotes to Table 3:

1. 2016/17, column shows approved budgeted efficiencies

2. 2016/17 efficiencies are budgeted as approved by Council. These are subject to in-
vear variation which will be reported as part of in year monitoring

3. The projected efficiencies for 2017/18 are subject to ongoing review and refinement

3.03

The majority of budget reductions continue to be made through organisational
change, overhead and workforce cost reduction, and service modernisation
and productivity. The ongoing service changes where there are impacts for
the public, and consultation and engagement will be needed include:-

e the programme of school modernisation and reviews of primary and
secondary provision;
e the school funding formula and levels of annual funding;

e changes to social care models; cost recovery through charging and
partnership contributions; entittement and non-statutory service
provision;

Page 22




e waste policy including household recycling centre provision and side
waste enforcement; subsidised transport routes; the review of transport
entitlement and operational policies e.g. school transport;

e charging and cost recovery for services; and

e minimum service provision and the ‘core service offer’ to local
communities which could be supplemented by local community action
and local income e.g. through town and community council
contributions.

3.04

The business plan proposals are being shared with Overview and Scrutiny
Committees for consultation through June and July. The proposals, both those
which are internalised and have no direct impact on the public and those
which affect service provision and do impact on the public will be shared in
full with Committees for consultation. The latter only will be presented for
public consultation.

3.05

As in previous years there will be risk to the achievement of proposed budget
efficiencies, either because certain proposals prove to be unacceptable to the
Council or the public in their recommended form or because of complexities
in their practical implementation. The scope to achieve savings through
collaboration with neighbouring councils is limited during a period of
uncertainty over the probability of a reorganisation of local government. These
limitations are both political and practical. Some of the business plans include
pragmatic and beneficial service integration proposals for which support
cannot be realised with neighbouring councils. This is a limiting factor beyond
the control of Flintshire.

3.06

The portfolio business plans will continue to be reviewed and developed for
future years including 2018/19 as the third and final year of the current MTFS
period. The options for identifying further savings at this level, beyond
2017/18, are very limited. The scope for further savings through organisational
change, efficiency, and charging within current legislative and national policy
limitations, is reducing year on year.

Corporate Services Portfolio Business Plan

3.07

The Corporate Services group has three portfolios: Governance; People and
Resources; Chief Executive’s. The first two have full portfolio business plans
with efficiency targets. The portfolio for Chief Executives does not have a
formal business plan due to its small scale. In the on-going absence of the
Chief Officer (People and Resources) through serious illness the Chief
Executive continues to manage the People and Resources Portfolio with
support from the two Chief Officers (Organisational Change).

3.08

As with all other service portfolios the portfolios for Governance and People
and Resources have set cost reduction/efficiency targets of 30% for the three
year period of their business plans. In some service areas within these
portfolios, notably Finance and Human Resources and Organisational
Development, structural and other service changes had already achieved
significant financial savings in years immediately prior to the current business
planning cycle.

Page 23




3.09

The proposals for the Governance and People and Resources Portfolios are
set out in Appendix 1. These are summarised in Table 4 below alongside the
service cost pressures.

3.10

Table 4.1: Summary of Corporate Services Portfolio Cost Pressures

2018/19
Corporate Services Cost Pressures £m

ICT 0.115
Procurement Pressure 0.002

Total Corporate Services Cost Pressures 0.117

Footnote to Table 4.1

1. ICT pressure is broadband provision for schools
2. Procurement pressure is an increase in cost of joint procurement service with
Denbighshire County Council following a team restructure

Table 4.2: Summary of Corporate Services Portfolio Efficiencies

2017/18
Corporate Services Efficiencies £m
People and Resources - Finance 0.270
People and Resources — Human Resources and 0.228
Organisational Design
Governance - ICT 0.350
Chief Executive’s 0.055

Total Corporate Services Efficiencies 0.903

3.11

Whilst not having a formal portfolio business plan the Chief Executive’s
Portfolio has led major cost reductions across the whole Council, and made
proportionate savings within its own minor budget over the past 2 years
through: the introduction of the new corporate operating model and the
significant reduction in chief officer posts; an initial and then an ongoing
reduction in the number of personal assistant posts supporting a reduced chief
officer complement; the merger of the Policy and Performance Team and the
Communications Team with the reduction of one senior manager position; the
gradual reduction of the Policy and Performance Team complement by 50%
over a longer period with the recent deletion of a managerial post through
voluntary redundancy; the ‘freezing’ of the post of Executive Manager with the
departure of the post holder for another position externally; the ‘freezing’ of
the post of Chief Officer (People and Resources) and an internal interim
management arrangement during the long-term absence of the post holder
through serious illness.

3.12

The cost and value of corporate support services in local government and the
public sector have come under intense scrutiny with the Welsh Government
commissioning a review in its previous term. This review was undertaken by
KPMG and CIPFA and members will recall that the credibility of its
conclusions was contested when drawn upon by the then Minister for Public

Page 24




Services to extrapolate the potential costs savings to be had in ‘back office’
services, as they are often termed, from a structural re-organisation of local
government in Wales.

3.13

Given this level of public scrutiny, and the need to be assured that the current
portfolio business plans are indeed sufficiently challenging to both modernise
and streamline support services and make overhead cost reductions, the
Council commissioned an independent review of the corporate services
portfolio business plans. The work was undertaken by PA Consulting. The
review, which will be summarised in the presentation to be made to the
Committee at the meeting largely validated the business plans with some
further recommendations for streamlining and improving service structures,
systems and activities. The recommendations for further modernisation were
more concentrated in Legal Services and Finance. The work concluded
overall that the value for money of our corporate services is competitive, that
efficiency targets are stretching and generally achievable, with cautionary
advice that Human Resources and Organisational Development is already an
optimal industry model which, being lean and low cost, would not be resilient
if further efficiencies beyond a mid-point cost target were required.

3.14

Given that all portfolios have been expected to fundamentally review their
priorities, operations, efficiency and cost within the three year business
planning process, the Council has become acutely aware of the risks of
change proposals, the public acceptability of major change, and the impacts
on maintaining services which are sustainable and resilient. In support of the
business plans, and as evidence for our case for the need for national funding
support and relief as a ‘low funded council’, each portfolio is producing an
evidential resilience statement and an efficiency statement as twin
documents.

3.15

The resilience statements will cover the risks to Council priorities, mandatory
duties, service quality and service sustainability should the Council have no
option but to go beyond the efficiency targets within its current portfolio
business plans. The efficiency statements will demonstrate the actual and
comparative cost bases of services and their value for money.

3.16

The resilience and efficiency statements for the Corporate Services will be
presented to the Committee at either its July or September meeting.

4.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

4.01

The resource implications of financial are significant. The Medium Term
Financial Strategy will continue to carry many risks. Careful risk assessment
in planning and decision-making will continue to be a central feature of review
and debate.

Page 25




5.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

5.01 | Consultation with Group Leaders, Overview and Scrutiny Committees,
external partners, external advisors and representative bodies, and
eventually the communities of Flintshire will follow. The strategic approach
advocated for the MTFS builds on the current approach which had majority
member and public support in planning the 2016/17 annual budget.

6.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

6.01 All parts of the financial forecast, and all budget solutions, are risk assessed
stage by stage. An overall risk assessment and risk management statement
will be produced both for the revised MTFS and the draft annual budget for
2017/18. The appendix which sets out the specific portfolio business plan
proposals for the corporate services includes commentary on risk.

7.00 | APPENDICES

7.01 | Appendix 1: Detailed Corporate Services Portfolio Business Plan Proposed
Efficiencies

8.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

8.01 | MTFS Parts 1 and 2

http://www . flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-

Strateqy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-1.pdf

http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-
Strateqy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-2-September-2015.pdf

2016/17 Council Fund Budget Report
http://cyfarfodyddpwyllgor.siryfflint.gov.uk/documents/g3508/Public%20report
s%20pack%2016th-Feb-
2016%2014.00%20Flintshire%20County%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=undefin
ed

MTFS Cabinet Report, April 2016
http://cyfarfodyddpwyllgor.siryfflint.gov.uk/documents/g3574/Public%20report
s%20pack%2019th-Apr-
2016%2009.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10&LLL=undefined

Contact Officers: Colin Everett and Gary Ferguson
Telephone: 01352 702101
E-mail: gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 26



http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-1.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-1.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-2-September-2015.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-2-September-2015.pdf
http://cyfarfodyddpwyllgor.siryfflint.gov.uk/documents/g3508/Public%20reports%20pack%2016th-Feb-2016%2014.00%20Flintshire%20County%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=undefined
http://cyfarfodyddpwyllgor.siryfflint.gov.uk/documents/g3508/Public%20reports%20pack%2016th-Feb-2016%2014.00%20Flintshire%20County%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=undefined
http://cyfarfodyddpwyllgor.siryfflint.gov.uk/documents/g3508/Public%20reports%20pack%2016th-Feb-2016%2014.00%20Flintshire%20County%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=undefined
http://cyfarfodyddpwyllgor.siryfflint.gov.uk/documents/g3508/Public%20reports%20pack%2016th-Feb-2016%2014.00%20Flintshire%20County%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=undefined
http://cyfarfodyddpwyllgor.siryfflint.gov.uk/documents/g3574/Public%20reports%20pack%2019th-Apr-2016%2009.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10&LLL=undefined
http://cyfarfodyddpwyllgor.siryfflint.gov.uk/documents/g3574/Public%20reports%20pack%2019th-Apr-2016%2009.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10&LLL=undefined
http://cyfarfodyddpwyllgor.siryfflint.gov.uk/documents/g3574/Public%20reports%20pack%2019th-Apr-2016%2009.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10&LLL=undefined
mailto:gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

9.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

9.01

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS): a written strategy which gives
a forecast of the financial resources which will be available to a Council for
a given period, and sets out plans for how best to deploy those resources to
meet its priorities, duties and obligations.

Revenue Support Grant: the annual amount of money the Council receives
from Welsh Government to fund what it does alongside the Council Tax and
other income the Council raises locally. Councils can decide how to use this
grant across services although their freedom to allocate according to local
choice can be limited by guidelines set by Government.

Specific Grants: An award of funding from a grant provider (e.g. Welsh
Government) which must be used for a pre-defined purpose.

Office of Budget Responsibility: created in 2010 to provide independent
and authoritative analysis of the UK public finances.

Institute of Fiscal Studies: formed in 1969 and established as an
independent research institute with the principal aim of informing public
debate on economics in order to promote the development of effective fiscal

policy.

Independent Commission on Local Government Finance in Wales:
established to examine how local government funding can be made more
sustainable with a view to providing specific recommendations for
improvement and reform.

Welsh Local Government Association: the representative body for
unitary councils, fire and rescue authorities and national parks authorities in
Wales.

Page 27




This page is intentionally left blank



Business Planning Efficiencies for Corporate
Services

Appendix 1

0.115

DBS Recharges

Income Generation

GOVERNANCE - LEGAL

6¢ abed

Specific 2016/17 Proposals and 2017/18 Options Type 16-17 16-17 16-17 17-18 17-18 17-18 Explanation
RISK status of RISK status of Categorisation
PROPOSALS MANDATORY |ACCEPTABILITY and Outline MANDATORY ACCEPTABILITY of financial
£m duties DELIVERABILITY OPTIONS duties robustness
£m DELIVERABILITY

PEOPLE & RESOURCES - FINANCE

Implementation of Collaborative Planning Software to finance to improve and Service Efficiency

automate our processes thus enabling workforce efficiencies "

Phased roll out of new finance model. Structural Review 3 The new budget monitoring software is being rolled out to fully automate the process from
2016/17. Areview of the finance operating model is also being undertaken in 2016/17
which will incorporate the outcomes of the software together with a review of other
processes.

0.270
Totals 0.270

PEOPLE & RESOURCES - HUMAN RESOURCES &

ORGANISATIONAL DESIGN

Effective people management skills o increase levels of Managers' self| Service Efficiency Demand management exercise to upskill managers to become increasingly self sufficient in

sufficiency managing their people /teams.

Redefine clear roles and responsibilities for Human Resources (HR) / Senvice Efficiency Complements the exercise above in that the roles and responsibilities of HR and managers

managers need to be redefined for the future and will reduce reliance on HR resources.

Review of Human Resources & Organisational Design operaing model and job | Structural Review To review the operating model and structure for Human Resources & Organisational Design to

roles _ better meet the organisation's future requirements.

Further roll-out (50%) of Flexible & Agile Working arrangements (phase 1) Service Efficiency Promotion and implementation of flexible and agile to reduce accommodation space.

Implementation of iTrent Self Service to Schools Service Efficiency 2 Reduction of reliance on corporate and Schools administrative processes thereby creating

efficiencies in workforce.

Carrying out DBS checks is a mandatory duty; but recharging for doing them isn't.

Totals

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

Increase income Income Generation 1 To increase the fees recharged to developers etc entering legal agreements with the council in

line with other councils in Wales (the income eamed as a % of the service budget is
- approximately half that of other councils).

Staffing - service review Structural Review 2 Legal Senvices consists of 2 teams which will be combined under a single manager. Work will|

be collaboratively shared with Wrexham to increase skills mix and spread peaksftroughs in
- - - demand.
Totals 0.015

GOVERNANCE - ICT

Reduction in management, staff and non pay costs Structural Review 0.300 2 The service willreview licencing costs based on the reducing council workforce and has
reduced technology costs by re-procuring some suppliers. The service is also increasing
income through hosting services and the digital print room. The service will also be reducing

NM the retained capacity for change and transformation, and future projects will need to be
specifically resourced.
ICT Senvice Efficiency 1 of service to create

Voluntary Sector Grants review Senvice Efficiency 0070 0.055 Some Social Services 2 Revised core funding agreements with voluntary sector partners to reflect new models of
delivery and revised funding arrangements.
NM NM be delivered; needing
collaboration agreement.
Totals 0.070 0.055

[TOTAL CORPORATE SERVICES [ | 0.855 | | 0.903 |
CORPORATE SERVICES | |
[Total value of Business Plan proposals | 2.483 |
CATEGORISATION KEY Count Number Total 16-17 Total 17-18
1= Fully Costed and Safe - Very detailed costings/modelling undertaken
and the accuracy can be relied upon not to change significantly 2 0.235 0.000
2= Reasonably costed will need refining - The level of detail behind the
costings/modelling is reasonable although further work will be required
to ensure robustness and to deal with any changes in circumstances
e.g. market conditions. 6 0.620 0633
3= High level costing requires detailed further modelling - The figures
are included at a high level with uncertainty around some of the
significant detail e.g. further work required to develop a specific
proposal such as rationalising services/buildings.

0 0.000 0.270




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Sir y Fflint
("E!En!s!z.ire

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Date of Meeting Thursday 16 June 2016
Report Subject Revenue Budget Monitoring (Month 12)
Cabinet Member Leader of the Cabinet and Cabinet Member for
Finance
Report Author Corporate Finance Manager
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the Revenue Budget
Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 12).

RECOMMENDATIONS

1

That the committee considers and comments on the Revenue Budget
Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 12) report. Any specific matters for
attention will be noted and reported verbally to the Cabinet when it
considers the report.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING POSITION
2015/16 (MONTH 12)
1.01 | The Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 12) report will be

presented to Cabinet on Tuesday 21 June 2016. A copy of the report
is attached as Appendix A to this report.

Page 31



2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | As set out in Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month
12).

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | None required.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | As set out in Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month
12).

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 12).

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None required.
Contact Officer: Sara Dulson, Finance Manager
Telephone: 01352 702287
E-mail: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | (1) Revenue: a term used to describe the day to day costs of running

Council services and income deriving from those services. It also
includes charges for the repayment of debt, including interest, and
may include direct financing of capital expenditure.

(2) Budget: a statement expressing the Council’s policies and service
levels in financial terms for a particular financial year. In its broadest
sense it includes both the revenue budget and capital programme and
any authorised amendments to them.

Page 32




APPENDIX A

Sir y Fflint
("F!,Em,sl,bﬁre

CABINET MEETING
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 21 June 2016
Report Subject Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 12)
Portfolio Holder Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance
Report Author Corporate Finance Manager
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This regular monthly report provides the latest revenue budget monitoring position
for 2015/16 for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account. The position is
based on actual income and expenditure as at Month 12, and projects forward to
year-end. Work is underway to close the 2015/16 accounts and the Final Outturn
will be reported to Cabinet on 19 July 2016.

The projected year end position is as follows:

Council Fund

o Net in year expenditure forecast to be £1.372m lower than budget
e Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2016 of £4.258m

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £0.093m lower than budget
e Projected closing balance as at 31 March 2016 of £1.330m

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Note the overall report and the projected Council Fund contingency sum
as at 315t March 2016.

2 Note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue
Account.

Page 33



APPENDIX A

3 To agree the carry forward requests as stated in Appendix 6.
REPORT DETAILS
1.00 | THE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING POSITION FOR MONTH 12
- 2015/16
1.01 | Council Fund Latest In Year Forecast
The table below shows the projected position by portfolio.
In-Year
TOTAL EXPENDITURE Original | Revised | Projected | Over/
AND INCOME Budget Budget Outturn | (Under)
spend
£m £m £m £m
Social Services 59.696 59.113 59.171 | 0.058
Community & Enterprise 12.598 12.917 11.818 | (1.099)
Streetscene &
Transportation 27.782 28.478 29.368 | 0.890
Planning & Environment 4.887 5.420 5.498 | 0.078
Education & Youth 13.760 12.069 12.242 | 0.173
Schools 82.670 84.331 84.331| 0.000
People & Resources 4,595 4.624 4.495 | (0.129)
Governance 8.689 8.711 8.785| 0.074
Organisational Change 9.569 9.613 9.424 | (0.189)
Chief Executive 3.296 3.087 2.965 | (0.122)
Central & Corporate
Finance 23.915 23.094 21.988 | (1.106)
Total 251.457 251.457 250.085 | (1.372)
1.02 | The reasons for the projected variances occurring to date are summarised
within appendix 2 with movements between periods summarised in appendix
1.
1.03 | Significant budget movements between original and revised budget
There have been no significant budget movements in month 12.
1.04 | Streetscene and Transportation
The overall overspend within Streetscene & Transportation has increased
slightly from a projected £0.880m overspend at Month 11 to £0.890m as at

Page 34




APPENDIX A

Month 12. The projected overspend within the service is due in part to the
delay in the implementation of a number of efficiencies. In addition fluctuations
in recycle sales due to a volatile market has led to an increased pressure on
income projections which have resulted in a shortfall of £0.375m. Full details
of movements are explained in Appendix 2.

1.05

Programme of Efficiencies

The 2015/16 budget contains £12.874m of specific efficiencies which are
being tracked.

1.06

Appendix 3 provides detail on the latest position where there is a variation to
the level of efficiency achievable compared to the budget.

1.07

This shows that it is currently projected that £10.612m (82%) will be achieved
resulting in a net underachievement of £2.262m. The underachieved
efficiencies are included within the projected outturn figure.

1.08

Inflation

Included within the 2015/16 budget are provisions for pay (£1.304m), targeted
price inflation (£0.421m), non-standard inflation (£0.102m) and income
(£0.254m).

1.09

For 2015/16 the amounts for non-standard inflation (NSl) include an allocation
for food (£0.064m) and an allocation for Non Domestic Rates (£0.038m).

1.10

There is an amount of £0.240m remaining from 2014/15 which is also being
held centrally. Areas subject to NSI increases will be monitored throughout
the year and allocations made to portfolio areas only where a critical funding
need is evidenced.

1.1

It is anticipated that the £0.064m for food inflation will not be required. In
addition to this there is a surplus of £0.061m remaining from inflation set aside
for pay. Therefore £0.125m is now projected to underspend. The balance of
the 2014/15 inflation and £0.110m from the in-year inflation have been
included as an efficiency within the 2016/17 budget.

Reserves and Balances

1.12

Unearmarked Reserves

The 2014/15 outturn reported to Cabinet on 14" July 2015 showed

Page 35




APPENDIX A

unearmarked reserves at 31 March 2015 (above the base level of £5.769m) of
£4.746m.

1.13 | Taking into account previous allocations and the current underspend at Month
12 the balance on the contingency reserve at 315t March 2016 is projected to
be £4.258m.

1.14 | Earmarked Reserves
The Council has adopted a reserves protocol which was considered by Audit
Committee and approved by County Council on 24" September 2015.

This sets out the principles around how the council will determine, manage
and review the level of its reserves and includes reference to regular reporting
of the latest position to Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.

The next updated position on earmarked reserves will be included in the
outturn monitoring report.

Housing Revenue Account

1.15 | On 17 February 2015 the Council approved a Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) budget for 2015/16 of £30.776m. The budget provided for a closing
balance of £1.396m.

1.16 | The 2014/15 Outturn Report to Cabinet on 14 July 2015 showed a closing
balance at the end of 2014/15 of £1.510m.

1.17 | The Month 12 monitoring report for the HRA is projecting in year expenditure
to be £0.093m lower than budget and a projected closing balance as at 31
March 2016 of £1.330m, which at 4.3% of total expenditure satisfies the
prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

1.18 | Carry Forward Requests
Various requests to carry forward funding into 2016/17 have been identified.
Details of all carry forward requests are shown in appendix 6 and are
recommended for approval.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | The Budget Monitoring Report reflects the planned use of the financial

resources of the Council for the current financial year and details the
variations occurring to date.
| 3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT |

Page 36




APPENDIX A

3.01

None Required.

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

As we are nearing the closure of the 2015/16 accounts it is not anticipated
that there are any significant risks to the Final Outturn which will be
reported to Cabinet on 19 July 2016. The summary of in-year risks are not
included as in previous month's reports as they have now been projected
through to year end.

5.00

APPENDICES

5.01

Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month 11 — Appendix 1
Council Fund — Budget Variances — Appendix 2

Council Fund — Programme of Efficiencies — Appendix 3

Council Fund — Movement on unearmarked reserves — Appendix 4
Housing Revenue Account Variances — Appendix 5

Council Fund — Carry Forward Requests — Appendix 6

6.00

LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01

None required

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson

Finance Manager
Telephone: 01352 702287
E-mail: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Budget: a statement expressing the Council's policies and service levels
in financial terms for a particular financial year. In its broadest sense it
includes both the revenue budget and capital programme and any
authorised amendments to them.

7.02

Council Fund: the fund to which all the Council’'s revenue expenditure is
charged.

7.03

Financial Year: the period of twelve months commencing on 1 April.

7.04

Housing Revenue Account: the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a
local authority account showing current income and expenditure on

Page 37



APPENDIX A

housing services related to its own housing stock. The account is separate
from the Council Fund and trading accounts and is funded primarily from
rents and government subsidy.

7.05 | Projected Outturn: projection of the expenditure to the end of the
financial year, made on the basis of actual expenditure incurred to date.

7.06 | Reserves: these are balances in hand that have accumulated over
previous years and are held for defined (earmarked reserves) and general
(general reserves) purposes. Councils are required to regularly review the
level and purpose of their reserves and to take account of the advice of the
Chief Finance Officer.

7.07 | Revenue: a term used to describe the day-to-day costs of running Council
services and income deriving from those services. It also includes charges
for the repayment of debt, including interest, and may include direct
financing of capital expenditure.

7.08 | Underspend: when referring to expenditure the actual expenditure
incurred is less than budget. Shown as a —ve. When referring to income
the actual income achieved exceeds the budget. Shown as a —ve.

7.09 | Variance: difference between latest budget and actual income or
expenditure. Can be to date if reflecting the current or most up to date
position or projected, for example projected to the end of the month or
financial year.

7.10 | Virement: the transfer of budget provision from one budget head to
another. Virement decisions apply to both revenue and capital expenditure
heads, and between expenditure and income, and may include transfers
from contingency provisions. Virements may not however be approved
between capital and revenue budget heads.

Page 38



COUNCIL FUND - REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16

o FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
Q'a.‘nr y Filint
Flintshire Budget Monitoring {Month 12}

Summary of Movement from Menth 11

Month 11

Portfolios

Centrat and Corporate Finance
Varlance as per Cabinet Report

Month 12

Portfolics

Central and Corporats Finance
Varlance as per Directorate Returns

Change Requiring Explanation

Soclal Services

Services For Aduits

Resources & Reg! Services - Disabillty Services - over payment lo a care provider and also
an under accrual of the deblor for autstanding jeint funding income

Minor varlances of less than £0.025m
Leamirg Disabilites / PDSI|

QOldar Paopla (Pravider Servicas)

Older Paople {Purchasing)

Mental Health Servicas

Subtotal: Services for Aduits

Qthar minor changes of less than £0.025m.
Good Health team

Deputyship team

Management & Support

Commissloning

Subtotal: Development & Resourcus

Children's Services

f ionat Suppert - col
movemants £0 002m

1 to cost of Emergency duty leam E0 029m plus other minor
Qut of County Placements - add tional placement cests

Other minor variances -of less than £0.025m

Fiying Start

Subtotal: Children's Services

Total: Social Services

&m

(0.486)
{1.088)

£m

(0.266)
(1.108)

{1.574)

(0.137)

0.004
0.005
0.005
0.023

{1.372}
0.202

0.007
0001
0014
0000

{0.100)

0.0

0272

0.002

0.022

Page 39

0.305

0.227

Appendix 1



Appeondix 1
Communi Enterpri

Revenues & Benefits

e« Further underspend on the Council Tax Reduction Schema provision {0.060)
*  Increased surplus on Council Tax Coilection Fund due to bad debis being less than anticipatad {0.213)
« Housing Benefii subsidsy pressure lower than axpected {0.100)
Subtotal: Revenues & Benefits {0.373)

Minor changes of fess than £0.025m.

= Council Fund Housing 0013
« Regeneraton {0.004)
¢ Revanues & Benefits 0024
» Housing Prograrmmes 0002
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m 0.035
Total: Community & Enterprise {0,338
7 ng & Tr: rtation Portfoli
Highway Network
s Movemant in araa teams dus lo aaditional patching warks ¢ 023
Subtatal: Highway Network 0.023

Transport & Logistics
s Reduced cost of scheol transport commitment {0.018)
Subtotal: Transpont & Logistics (0.018)

Minor variances of iess than £0.025m

*  Ancillary Seivices & Perfarmance 0.008

» Highway Network 0.010

s Transpor & Logistics (0.013)
Total miner variances of less than £06.025m 0.005
Total: Streetscene & Transportation 0.010

Page 40



Planning & Environment Portfolio

Minor varfances of less than £0.025m
e Business
e Community
¢ Access
* Shared Service
*  Strategy
«  Administration
* Vacani Pcsis
Total minor variancas of less than £0.025m

Total: Planning & Environment
Education & Youth
Inclusion Sarvices

« Qutof County F - 1t cests
Subtotal: Inclusion Services

A - Schaol F g & Provisi

Gther minor vanances also effect this.

Subtotal: A - School Planning & Pr

Minar variances of lass than £0.025m
« Primary School Services
« Secondary Schoo! Services
o Regional Services
= Adult & Community Education
e Community Cenlres
e Youth Justice Service
¢ Youth & Community Service
« C issioning & Perf -B Suppaort
« Schoal Management Infasmation
« Regional Capita One
Total minor varlances of lass than £0.025m

Total: Education & Youth

0025
(0 007)
(0.008)
(0.013)

0.014
(0.008)
{0.003)

0.183

0.000

0.000

Accass School Provision -Varance change due ta higher personal injury claims than predicted

0033

0.193

0.003
0.010
0.004
{0.004)
0.00%
0.00%
0.003
0.023
(0.018)
0.005

0.033

Page 41

0.028

0.254

Appendix 1



Appendix 1
Poopls & Rasoure

Minor varlances of less than £0.025m

« HR&OD (0 007)
» Corporate Finance (0.014)
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m {0.021)
Tatal: People & Resources {0.021)
Governance

Business Support
A carry forward request for £0 036m was agreed in the month 11 repon to fund work lor the

» creation of an electronic mal room This is now reflesled in the month 12 oultum figure Minor 0.028
i for the bal
Subtotal: Business Support 0.028
icr
A realignment of software renewal dates has rasulted in a reduction in expected outtum by 0.052
£0 040m. There were minor vaniances rasulling in raduced cuttum of £0.012m (0.052)
Subtotal: ICT {0.052}
Minor variances of lass than £0.025m
» Legal Services (0.014)
+ Demacratic Services {0.004)
Total minor varlances of less than £0.025m (0.018)
Total: Govarnance (0.042)

Organisational Change

Vatuation & Estates

« Unachigved income from ial unit rent, (0 004)
Sub I: Valuation & € {0.004)
Facilitles
A carry torward for £0.100m was apgroved in the manth 11 report. £0 021m s due to

®  minor variances 0.121
Subtotal: Facillties 0.121
Minor variances of less than £0.025m

» Public Libraries & Arts, Culture & Evenls (0.008)

¢ Musaums Service (D 002}

« Counly Archivas 0001

o Lasure Services 0.003

» Propery Design & Consultancy (0017}
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m (0.023)
Totai: Organisational Change 0.094

higf utive

Minor variances of less than £0.025m

A cany forward regues| was agreed in the month 11 report for promotion and advertising of the 0036
+ URDD Eisteddiord for £0 025m This amount was not reflected in the outtum uniil month 12

Thera wera minor varances of £0.011m,

Total: Chiaf Executlve 0.036

Central orporate Finance

« Pension Deficit Port{glic Recharges 0.014
« Carbon Reduction Commitment lower as a resu't of reduced emissions {0.035)
¢ Minor varlances 0.003
Total: Centrat & Corporate Finance {0.018)

Total Changas
0.202

Page 42



‘sajnssaid
ssalppe 0]} a80lAI8S Ul B8Jaymasie  spuadssspun
asn 0} suawisnipe Juawubiyeas 196png puawwIcday

‘sainssasd
SSaIppe 0] JAIES Ul alBuymas|e  spuadsiapun
asn 0} sjuawisnipe Juawubijeas 1o6png puswILIooay

*S20IAJaS JaYlo
pue 21e9 AeQ UM (WL90°03F) 18U € O} JUNCLWE SIJUBLIBA JOUIW JBYIO
B340

‘(seonuag paje|nbay pue Sa2N0SaY) JUSWaIGEaYy
® 9YEjuUj WOl SBYIed0T Ol PILBISURA Sy yolym Wea) oA
(e100S jeudsoy ayl o) Buyepds (weLL03) JO 18I0} B SBpnoul Yalym
‘SBIIUBIBA JONIOAN (1008 0} anp Buiyels o} sajejal yaym (Wb 03) Jo
puadssapun pajosfosd |EJO) B S| B1aY ] "SWES) SSNIEI0T BAIE SY} UIYIM
poddns jeuoissajoid ayy s puadsiapun juedyiubls jo ease Jaypny v
uoddng [euoissajoid

-Buisunu sayy 10} (wsgn-03) Buipnioul 186png anoqe
awooul Ul sesesloul Jayuny snid ‘awoout pajejal Auadoid jo [9A3] By Ul
aseasou; ue 0} anp (WL /g 03) §0 puadsiepun ue ‘SIOPIACID Bwoy 3iea
0} sjuswAed uo (WOpg 03) JO puadsiapun ue ‘sapnidoul Yoiym ‘ased
jenuapisa) uo (wgg/'03) Jo puadsiapun pajdeloid e AgQ jasyo uey)
alow Buiaq s1 ases Aeyoiwog uo puadsiano paoalod jueoyubis ayy
aje) jejjusapisay

-abeyoed xajdwoo auo Jo uonessad ayy AQ paouanyul Ajued
uSaq Sey YaIyM ‘W ZER 03 JO uoNisod LWININO G1/7LOZ 3Y) Wolj paonpal
AnueoyiuBis sey yolym WSS 03 S1 puadsiano pajoafosd Jo (99
Juauno ayj ‘enuaswep yim adoad jo siaqunu Busessoul pue paau
10 Aixajdwos paseasou; ‘sjyosd opessowsp Buibueyo sy ‘lwswalges)
1sed jnyssaoans Bumojjoy soinias ayy o} Buiunyas sjuai|o Aq paousnjul
Bulaq s st yoym ‘ased Ao s aJinssesd JO eaie uew
ay) -ease s} uj sasueuea Bunesuadwod Juesyiubis awos ale aay)

(sanyeso’)

ase) Aeypuuoq|(glso)  [(8150)  [ivL L S99°vL swea ) Ayeso]
SPIAIBEG [BIDOS
{w3) {(w3) (w3) (w3)
wn; abpn
pasnbay uogjoy souepeA Jofely Jo asne) WW.U_M“M”‘ 82UBUBA vo.o%“un_ hwm_ﬂoﬂ TS ET

T Xipusddy

AHVYIWAINS - ¢1 HLNOW

Page 43



*SUN02 JO uoslid woly adou
pous je spuewsp pue siaquinu juayd uy sabueyd

[ERITVEIN
asnsiyy soueIsqns
2 Uyeay [euap)

ol snp Aumejoa jenusiod - maines sspun dea)y 'g1/510Z 10} sabeyoed ased wauno s13ay|(GLL ) (sL10) 20Z°0 L1E0 12b6png oisuaio
(ao1ag
asnsiy aoueIsqns
3 YlESH [EIUAN)
‘s}so0d abexoed mau jeuollippe 213G Aeliwod
‘malnal sapun deayopisbuoje  sabesoed Aseloiwog pue  [ERUSPIS3Y Ul SBSBAJOU||0.E°0 0/£0 £gLL €180 pue [enuapisay
‘S3WI00JN0 PasInas
pue mama) aoinuas Bumojjoy paonpas Apuesyiubls uaag mou aAey
SJOSN 90IAJSS 10} S)SOD Pajoadxe JO S} Ul SIUSWHIWIWOD SNoInald (saoiniag Aupgesia)
‘SJUZID UOIISUBJ) |EUOHIPPE/MBU JO} JUSWIHUNLIOD PAsIABI B S3PNIoUl 2o1nag Aligesi|g pue
"MaIAa] Japun daay(mou uonasford Byl "91L/SL0Z o) sebexoed ased juaiund s1dYaY|(zoe 0} (zoc 0 166°L 6622 S}NpY S{qeIBUINA
*JoBIUOD %00iq MU B J0 1oedwt ay)
pue siasn asuas mau Buipnjour ‘6uiar pauoddng papiaoid Ajjewsixa
ulyum 2180 AlB|IDIWOp JO S)SOD |BUCIPPE O} dje|3l  puadsiaAo
pajoaioid By} Ul S3SEaIoU JU3D3J "SIaIRD A0|dWD OyYm SIaSn aIAISS 10}
sjuatfed soueinsul Aupqgel safojdwa puny o) suonebigo o) pue siasn
aoues 0) sjuawded ay) abeusw o) papasu Aeded uopelsiupupe
‘sainssaid|jeuonippe ayi OF uonejas ul s JuswsPE Buuewss ay) -Asusioye (seanag Aygesiq)
ssaippe 0] 9JIAI9S Ul aieymasie spuadsispun|yo suo e se sjesodio) pue |enua)d o) (471) puny Buag yapuadapuy saoinag palejnbay
asn 0} syuawisnipe yuewubiees 196png puawwoosy|ayl o) uoneias ul 16png jo sajsuel) ay) Bunoaljal mou S| 30IUBS SIULIEEL0 2090 L¥8'SlL 6€2°GL Y S32IN0SAY
uauwaasbe diyssauped g uoiDS 3Y) uonnNquuod
uyim siuswsbuese [eloueuly ay) Jo maiAd) Bumoio) diysieuned ay) wswdinbg
0} UOIINQUIUOD §,ISUNGY ayl Jo Buipuny Joj Juswalnbal ul uoyonpay |(#80 0) {+80 0} Z6E°0 9.%°0 Apunwwod
-pasyn Buiaq Buipunj DHD [EUOIIPPE pue 'aduapuadapul (Juswisjgeay
aen \yyea Bunupua) Dunowosd axnes JBUoue 0 J3JYO pue ayeju))
‘mainaJ Japun daay|ue Jo uoiesojeas ay) 0) anp Auew st puads sapun pajosiaud ayt [(622°0) (6zz'0) 002°0 B82b'0 SBDIAIBG JuBWalqeay
(w3) (w3) (w3} (urz)
LL Yauol wnyno 18Bpng
pasnbay uojloy asueueA Jofep jo esned aoueLEA 8JuUBUEA peysefoid pasiey asag

7 Xipuaddy

AHYWAINS - 21 HINOW

Page 44



*saoualoya ajgissod
pue Buuugld sy WIOj |IM PUB P3IIPISUOD

‘sJased au}
Joj aouemojje Bujobuo ue joeie Ajgeueaul yauym siapio diysuelpiens)
{e10ads pue 3oUBpPISAY 10 SISPIO LNOI jO Jaquinu Buiseasoul

(seoiuag s,uaipiyd)

Buieg SI YoM JO BWOINC Byl ‘UBEUSPUN |3y} O} BNP OSIE S! SIY) JO HEd "92IAIBS B} UM Sjudwae|d BIED Jaiso)
usaq SBY Wea} jJusawaodeld AjlLed ay} JO mainal O JaquInNu 3y} Ul 3SEaIdUY UB JO JNSal e S) puadsieno w2 03 3Ul|.v2 0 20 vive 1222 juswade|d Ajwe
(e)ebaibbe)
SaoUBUEA S30IN0SAY
‘JusuNda) 2q 0} pajoadxa Jou INg MalAal 0) anuluoa) ‘Sa0ueUeA Jouiw snouep |{600°0) €100 K d IR A  awdojanaq jauyip
‘pannbal jaAa) ay) 0) dn doj 0} UDYELBPUN SBM SBOINIDS
[e100g urpm JuewuBieas woy yebpng B || yuow u| (dAMmOS)
el awweibolg juswdopA3g 0UOPUOAL BIBD [BI00S 3Yl I0)
suoipuos el ay) 1aaw ) palinbal jans) ayy mojaq ua|je) pey 1a6png
ay) jo wawa Bulpun) yojew sy} souaNbISUOD B Sy "SUOHRUILIBIBP
HAMAS pue sawodino smels 9fuls  jo  edwr  pauiquio
‘JUS.UN33) aq 0} pajaadxa JoU NG MaIAS) 0} anullUoD]au) Jo 8auanbasuod e se Paanpal peYy adIAIBs Sy} Joj 13b6png aseq 8y [2£0°0 2€0°0 910 ZeL0 Bupmes |
‘sainssald awoou|
SS3IPPE 0} BJAISS Ul asBumasid  spusdsiapun siaam 1ad 093 0) yoam Jad gg3F woly ded ableyd wnwixew Aoijod Buibiey)
asn 0) sjuawisnipe awubieas ja6png pustuWosay|syl JO [9AR] 8yl Ul USWUWIBA0D USISM Ag asessoul ue Jo joeduwi|(#0Z°0) (p020) (228°1) {c291) - S30)ADG SSauIsng
-gidoad
J3pjO 10} uoiiisod wnuno pajasioid WBLND Byl uo paseq SaAIS3I (a1eba1bbe)
WOl UMOP UMBIP 24 0} palinbal Jou s| 3idoad Buruoddng woay Buipuny STOUBUEA SHNPY
JuaLNa1 g 0) PaY2adxa Jou ING MBIA3S 0} anunuo|ajgeliese |enuaiod ayl ‘gL pouad aduls "SadUBLIBA JOukL SNOUBA(OYL0) (601°0) 682701 869°01 10} S9NAIBG JBUID
(w3) (ws3) (w3) (w3)
nbey uo aosueueA Jofe asne by adueue, Wwnano 16png 82D
painbey uopoy e sofep jo 2 85_%“ >= MBA | Deofoig | pesmen nag

Z xipueddy

AHYANNS - 21 HINOW

Page 45



{691°0) 850°0 L21°6S €L1°6S S32JAI3G (170G [BIOL
(a1e6a166e)
S32UBLIEBA UIP|IYD
"jua.noal ag o} Pajoadxa JoU NG MIIABI 0} ANURUOYD *SBOUBLIBA JOUILL SNOLIBA] L60°0 66070 6152 or'e 10} S3NAIRG IBYIO
sjuawase|d
"M3IAB) Japun daay '91/G1.0Z 40) Sebeyoed aied Juaund sjalay|(802'0) 900 08v'e glv'e Aunog joino
‘wea} uopuaaiau| Apwed ayl uiyim Buyels uo puadsiapun
eosyubis e Bupnppul ‘boddng  [BUOISSBJ0Id SEDIAIBS  SURIPIIUD
uim assymasid (wgpy|03) jo spuadsiapun Jau Buasyo ase amly)
‘wea) Aing Adcuabuawg ay) Jo 1S00 3Y) 0} WEZO'03F JO uoinguuod
g S| aisyl ‘sswueoea o) anp sjebpng Aed jsuiebe spuadsiepun
Bumasyo swos yim ‘wp0'03F Wodsuel] pue wgll'03 JO Siapinoid
jeuwsxe o) sjuawAed uiypm sainssaid o) anp st syl (LSYAD) wes)
voddng synpy Bunoa pue suUSIDUD 3y} OF S3leRI YoM WELL'0F
jo aunssaid saypny e S| asayl ‘Wwodal Buuwopyuow 186png 2 Yiuopw
ay Buuapisuod uaym j8uIqe) Aq panoidde se amasas Asuasbunuod
ayl woy wQQL 03 Jo uoredoje ue jo Aem Aq psiebiiw Ajued uaag
-sainssaid|sey pusdsiano syl ‘20IAI3S By} JO BaJR SIY} UILIM SYSU Ay ssalppe o}
Ssalppe Ol 90A8S Ul BIBUMasie  spuadsiapun|yels Aojdap o) pasu ayj 0} anp S Ydiym ‘wes) JusLissassy 3 AinQ auy
asn o} suswisnipe wawubiesas j@6png puawLioday |uyum s1sod Aed Aouabe uo wgeL 03 j0 puadsiano payasioid e si @18yl {1910 2610 622'S 1£0'S poddng |euoISSaj0Id
{ui3) (ur3) {w3) “m__w,
asnbay uo L1 yuol wnyng isbpng
pasnbay uonoy soueyeA Jofel jo asne) asueep 83UBUBA peroafoig posiAsy LTV ET

Z Xipueddy

AHYWNNS - 21 HINOW

Page 46



{192°0)

(660°1)

818’11

LL6°TL

osyidiajug
B Hunuwwo? oy

“(wggo'03) wodu esb
10 uopesiwxews pue sabieysal yeis ‘910z ussel Aq aus uo aq yoq
1M Yoium Aenp) s,UBLLOY |OOUDS SSNOH WOISND PUB JUlld 'SHBAM 3Y)L
uo sawayos Jo Juswdoanap Jualpadxa ay} pavoddns sey ainypuadxa
siyy -soedg Buam salean yum Juswaaiby |eba Buiyosy JBAD
ay) Jo awdojaAsp ayl Yiim piemio) aaow O} (duvVHS) awwesboid
{emauay pue BuisnoH oibajests ay) ajqeua o} wgQL 03 Jo ainypuadxy

¢.00

¥200

9vL0

2.00

sawwesboid
BuisnoH

"(wG10°03) Jo SesuBUEA JOUIW JBYQ “(WeZL 03) dMA
wouy Buipuny sUBPING MBN [EUCHIPPY ‘WQLZ 03 4O liejHoys payabpng
Apisang Wauag BuisnoH (Wwgop'03) SWayds uonanpay XeL §aunod
ay) Joj uoisiaoid pajabpng auj uo puadsiapun pajdalold (wEs0 03)
sBuies Buyels -pajewnsa Ajeniul veyl saybiy (wpyog'03) 1@ spuels
Ajuaund pung UOROBOD XBJ HOUNOD BYl uo snidins pajedidnuy

(z6v 0)

(L¥8°0)

0616

1901

Ss)ijauag 'R SaNU3NAIY

(w1003
saosueueA Joulu JaylQ (Wip0 03) SWOodU| JUBID JO UONESIUNXEW
pue s§)s00 jo uoyesiendes Jeyungd ‘sjes swes 3yl e paseasoul
jou aaey safieyds assym ‘Jeak yoes uonepu yum auy ul Buiseasou)
sjafiie) swooul ©) anp SIBYJEIL Ul WEEN'03 JO HelHoys pajewnsgy

(0L0°0)

{ri00)

89S0

€850

uoijesauabay

‘WG L0'03 SSOUBUBA JOUI
Y10 (WoEZ 03) @2mues poddng uonepowwoddy paseq Ajunwiwo)
ay; jo 10adsas ui sBuineg [BUORIPPY 'WZQQ 03 luawdinbs asedsisl
JO JUawaINd0ld "W |90°03 PAIEdIDNUE UBY]L JOMO| 2WO3Ul 383913

(501°0)

{z60°0)

(521°0)

(e£0°0)

BuisnoH
pund [lounod

"W 100°03 SeouBUeA Jouw JaYl0 "(w/20'03) puadsiapun
seah-ul  pieoquoumg  (WREN'03) uoisiAcid  B0iAIBS  SIDBUU0D
amusiund a8yl uo pusdsiepuny (wep0'03) Aousioye  |eucilppe
sanua) AuUNwWiWwo) wezZo 03 peledionue uey) Jamof saguag poddng
Awnwwoen Jo padsas ul sbieysay (WZEO'03) UOHEPOWILIOIDY
SsajawoH Jo joadsas ul paynuapr Acusdyje Jeak-ur  (euoNIppY

(92z'0)

{9zz'0)

6EY’L

G991

S82INBS
Buisnoy g JawoIsny

EIG IR
D Aunuuon

pasinbay uopay

asuepeA Jofew jo asne)

(w3)
L} Yiuoly
eouepep

(wry)
guBURA

{w3z)
wnung
pejosfoid

(w3)
18bpng
pasiaey

RITY LTS

Z Xjpusddy

AHVAINNS - 2L HLNOW

Page 47



"M3IAB] PUEB JOJIUOLU O} DNUNRUCY

-abuajjeys yawywwos
Juswaejdw pue $22iA13s B salddng JOJUOW

ABuip1oooe suoyoaioid
puawe pue Aj9sod jaxsew BuyoAoal sopuop

Jayoel L
Aousioyy pieog swwesboiqd ybnosyy pauoday

Jayoel]

Aouaioy3 pseog swweiboid ybnosy papodey

Juausabuene juswabeuew mau pue sjjam UOHIBIIXS

‘GLILOIE
WOl paseas ydym Seledyiue)) uoidwaxy AAST SUl JO [EmeIpYIM BU)
0} anp me| uj abueyo e o) anp spuny [euoiippe Bunsanbas JojoesUOD
2)SEM PO} UL "BISEM POO4 GNH IN O Buriejas aseasoul Jo WOLO03

Yorewisie syl
0} ybnoayl w0 03 Jo sabeuuo) Juawwieal) sisem pajewi|sa Ul Isealdul
pue sseyand juswdinba pue sisod Buiyiop aanoaloid ‘8NS JYH
pieyuaaig) Je sipaoys Guipeo; jo aiy J0j WOP('03F JO SIS0D [BuONIPPY

“JBoA |BjoURLY

/1/9102 2y} jhun payuasic) je sanyioe) bunsodwoo ay) Buisn aq 1ou
[im Aoy se (126pnq woga 03) DD anysybiquaq wolj paaiadal uasg
sey awooul Jsodwod oN ‘WG g 03 Sanjen ajes ajoAd-a1 Bugenony

yum pouad apieioa o} anp jaxsew GuloAaas ay) Ul JusWIaAaIYOR JapUN

‘WGz 03 Ui isem puodas Joj abieyd jo uoionposul pue WEso 03
sJauRlUoD S)sem 1o} aoiuaes Keaijep Jo uojejuawsidwn pakelag

"wpgt 03 Jo Aousioys parabpng sy uo
[Ieioys pajoaiod |ejo) e Ul ynsal [m sals 4 pue Aenp s,yeuuo) je
sawyp Buneiado mau Jo uoHONPaIIY pajdadxa uey) Jatel ay o) sabueys
‘uoippe u| "anuas GuyoAoa: adoy Jo aunsop pasodaid ay) o} uojeia)
Ul UXEUSPUN UONBINSUOD pue pasapisucy Buieq aie suondo Jayung

‘wogi 03
1e pajewnsa mou si uoloesixe seb jo sjaaal Bunenonyy pue umopyeasg

Uon39)10D
alsep 7 |lesodsig
2ISBAM - 9oUBWIONAd

mou  jejsuyopeibdn 0] yuaunsaAul Joy jenuaiodliuswdinba Bumojjoy seulbua sef way sejes AoulosE paanpaYy|606°0 1260 6LG°2 2659 B S301AI9S Aug)|Iouy
uoneodsue.] |
9 SUaISIBING
(w3) (w3) (w3z) {(w3)
11 QBUoW wnynQ jebpng
asnbey uo
pasinbey uolidy asurpep sofep jo asned aoueuEp aduelUBA peiefold pesiaey aoaseg

Z Xjpuaddy

AYVAINNS - Z1 HLNOW

Page 48



uojjeuodsues]

088°0 068°0 99¢€°62 8Ly'8¢C P 3UAISIBING jeI0L
SacuBUBA JBYI0
"MBiAB) 0} Bhujuo) “S8JUBLEA ON|0000 0000 1640 16L°0 - iomiaN AemyBiH
‘gouBLIIUIBW
Jajum wiyim (WSO a3) J0 puadsiapun ue ag [im aisy) sjedoiue
‘1| pouad e pauodas asueuep S1)1 '9LOZ UDJEN JO pua ay) 0} dn 1ajuim abeiaae mojaq ey o) ang
CL pousd e
"MaIAa) 0) anugue] | papodas ase abewep pooy Bumoo) YE9F jo sxysom Buiyoled jeuoiippy
‘(wot0'03) sabieyoal Yels [eUOHIPPE PUB YoM pajejal
‘81507 aafojdwy sonuopy JajUIM O)Ul UoIliSuRl} BUIMO{|0} SUOREISTO MO\ PUNOIS P3ONPIY
Ja)aB ] ‘wiQE0 0F Buua uo asuesalo) 0182
foueplyy peog swwesbold ybnasyy papodsy| pue spiepuels Buisuesio paanpad ayi jo uonejuswaidwi sy ul Aejag
JayoRl ). wog 03 bumino abipay J0j awoou; jeuolippe }omaN
fouaidlyg pieog awwesbold ybnosy papoday]| awos Aqjasyo aowuas Bulno sseub Jo uoiesielua)xs jinj ay) ul Aejaci|v80°0 2110 €252 90v'L 9 ABajens shemybiy
SSoUBLIEA
Jvoel] Jay)o - sansibon
Aouaoyyy pieog awweibord ybnosy pauoday *¥g1 3 Juauniuwod Yodsued) jooyods Jo 1s00 paanpay|((6.0'0)  [(0ZL0)  {6¥¥8 695'8 ® uonepodsuel |
*sa(oiyanA Jo abesn Juaroys alow pue 193(4 - 5321MBS
‘MBIAB) 0} @nUNUoo)|saoud [any Buonpal 0} anp ‘sjS0D 8N} {EnuUe Ul UORONPa) Pajaaioid|(080°0) (020°0) VIR 108 30In0say 9 sonsiboq
S3oUBLIEA
‘1ayael | 130 - 9OUBULIOHA
Aousioyy3y preog awwesbold yBnony pauoday "S9IUBLEA JOUIN|(200°0) {€00°0) 950 6150 g S90IUBS Ale|jiouy
SaIAIBS
"M3IABI PUR 10)jLOLW O} aNURUOD “189A 3Y) Jo Japenb )se| ay) 10} S3a) |BUNG Ul SWOIU] Paseasou]|(9£0°0) {or0°0) iZA) 0820 Jjuswanealag
juswianiouy
*AJunay) ay) SSOIOE JuBwasIous (NDJ) 2 Bupjzey
-Ajbuipsoaoe suonofoxd 200N abieyn Aljeuad pue sabseyo Gupjed Jes jo uojeluawadu - 3oUBULOHRd
puswe pue AjPs0 awodu| Bubped Je) JOHUOW ayy u sAejap Buimoijoj sjesedoid Buluueld ssauisng wouy ||eioyS|$80°0 6200 €610 vLLO Q saoInBg Alejjiouy
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
L1 yiuonw wniang 198png
aiinbey uoyoy saueuEA Jofe asne saueye, 82IA
P WEA JOJEW 10 9SMED| o yypiiop | P2UBHBA | perosford | pesiney s

Z Xipusddy

AYYWIAINS - 21 HLINOW

Page 49



JUBWILAIAUT

810°0 820°0 869°G 0Zy's g Bujuued [ejoL

‘ajqissod a1aym aA0WIBONPAI -a.nipuadxa pajaafoid Sa0UBLEA JAYI0 JO

pue ainjpuadxa PapILLLCD JORUOL O} BNUKUOD| SJMN; JO anjeafidas) ay) Butonpal ul (njSSaINs abuajjeyd wawywwod |{$50°0) (L2100 200°€ £L0'€ 21262166y oljojuod

S3oUBMEA

ajqissod a1aym aaowal/3onpal ‘aunyipuadxa pajoefoid 1ay)0 Jo ajebaibby

PUE 2JN)IpUACXa PBIIIWILLOD JORUOW 0} SNURLOT| iNjny JO aNjEA/BAS) ay) BuldNpas ul |NgSSaoons abusiieyd Juawwwe) (gzo0) (sz00) 8010 €EL0 - juawdoasg
‘pajoadxa uey saybiy 6uisq swoou) aay
uoneayddy Buluue|d ald JO |9AS] BY) UM 19SH0 SEM SIY] "SIIDUIINYS
Buluug|d ssauisng ut pajoayal pue g0z ‘Judy 1o pasodoid

-pasoptuow | AijreunBuo sem siy) g (sajepn) Buluue)d ayi Japun GL0g 1290100 Ilun JuBLadJoNg

Ajesols 8q (M siAs| awoou] 884 Buwueld| %) Aq peseasoul butaq jou seay uonedlddy Buluueld Woy (IBAIOYS 1010 €010 (0c0 0} () B jo5ua) Buueld

‘3|qissod aiaym aA0iLSIEaoNPas pajediojue se S3JUBLEA JBYIO JO

pue asnppuadxa PSIIWWOI ICJUCW O} BNURUOY|papiacd Jou sem gL/G1L0Z woly uoonpas Buipuny 1a6png sj0Jlu0d Poo4i(5E00) {0L00) SivL gyl 21ebaibby - ssauisng
‘Aousby spiepue)g poo4 ay) woly Wiy 10703 J0 JuelD 3JIASS
*11/910Z woyy asess M| paad fewiuy ay Jo 1diasal ay) AG 19SHO "8IS By} uiym Buurewal

Buipuny 210} se Juawubijeas }abpng jegusiod ybnoiy) 1abue) aWO0DUI BY) pUB G 10T JaquanaQ ul Buipua 58D WeYXBIM eyaq

1e6ie} swodu) juein 2onpas o) shem ajebisaau yum diysssuped ay ui Bupinsas ‘Buipund Juelo vy43Q PAINPaY {6200 6200 SSL0 9cL0 g YleaH |ewiuy

S2oUBLEA

*9|qIssSod 2JaUM IA0LLBL/BINP3) ‘ainppuadxa pajoafoid 1340 jo a1ebai1bby

pue aunppusdxa PaRILWIOD JOJUOW O} anunuon| aimng jo snjeasi@as) ayl Buonpal vl jnyssa0ons abua|ieyd JUaHWWOD |0¥0°0 €£0°0 vel 0 169°0 - Ayunwwo)
‘ajeudoidde se suoysaloid 11/9102

awoou| jsnipe pue papiacld SBAIBS JO |9AB] JOJIUOK OJUl V|d B Se PJBMIO) PALLIED SWI0DUI 82Uad) JBaA G pue Jeak £1,00°0 900°0 8000 20070 Buisuaoi

‘gjeudoidde se suoijoaloid uspiep

WUl Isnipe pue papiaid SBJIAJBS JO 93| JOHUOW -‘uoipsad Burpueuy as ay) ui jlejHoys |enualod|zioo £L00 9500 £v0°0 Boq jonuon 1sayg

JUSWUONAUT

% Bujuueg

(w3) (w3) {w3) (w3)
wnyng 1ebpng
paumnbey uopoy soueuEA Jofel asneg| t YW | o oe aapue
A fofey jo ] I HEA perdsfod pesjaey |a8g

Z xipuaddy

AHYWIANS - 21 HINOW

Page 50



noy

{L80°0) £11°0 vezL 690°Z1 § uoneanp3 [eioL
‘uonepodsuel] yim paaibe
us3Q MOU 2ABY S)S00 Algjes paJeyS "OjojLa0d YINOA Pue uoieanpy Wea | uonewou] 9
‘M3IAR) O} BNUUOD YiIm aimponnsay Juswabeue Joiuag B bumo|joj sbuines Aduedep |(£50°0) (890°0) [:TAN) 2610 Juawabeuey |00Yy2g
‘oljofUod YINOA pue uoyeanp3l 20UBULIOHAY
“M3IARI O} BNURUDD UM anponisay Juswabeuep Jowag e Bumojo) sbuines Aoueoden|(6E0°0) (g10°0) 6280 SHE0 g Buuoissiwwo)
“MBIABS 0] Bnuluay ‘sagueueA JOUIN|{r10°0) (eL00) vey'tL LEVL S3JAJBS UYINOA
*MBIASBJ 0} BNUNU0D ‘adsueueA ON|000°C 000°0 961°0 96L°0 sjooyag Aimua 1sie
"SIl 109}J© OS|B SIUBLIBA JOUIW JBUID {uoisinaid g Buluue|d
‘maiaa) 0 anupuen|  “pajolpaxd uey) swier Amjui (euossad saybiy o) anp abueya saueLEA|(SS0°0) (220°0) 98y°0 806°0 Jooydg) §S839Y
CRITVETY
yyeaH ay) yum suoissnosip Buiobuo ase asey) - siuawadeld 1502 Y6y
10} Aed 0} Aoyiny aw jo Ajpgey oy Buipsebas uogniosal axnbal yoiym
seuanb Jo Jsqunu y ‘puewap Jo Ajjiqeidipaidun pue sjuawaded
1500 ybiy Joj [enusiod aty) pue a21IAI3S 8U) JO SINJEU 3{1BI0A 3}
"MBIAB] 0} BNUNUCD 0] anp Auoyine ay) 0} ysu Jo eale ue ale sjuawaseid Aiunog J0 1IN0 (9600 8820 Syl'l 1T S30IAIBG LOISNOU|
uogesnpg Buinuguon)
“MBIAB) 0} anujuo) ‘seoueueA JOUIN|(600°0) S00°0 cL0'L 290°L 9 6L-vL ‘Aepuosag
uoneaNpg SIesA
“M3IA3) 0} BNUIUO] “saouepeA JOUIN |[{£00°0) {y00'0) 980 898°0 Apeg g Aewud
ino g uogesnpg
(w3) (w3) (w3) {(w3)
w n
paiinbay uopjoy 80UBLIRA Jofey J0 asne) MM__._M“M““ ajueMeA nouﬁﬂ* NMM“SM ERITVETS

Z xjpusddy

AYYWRINS - 2L HINOW

Page 51



S321N0SaAY

(goL0) |{lezr0) [sev¥ 12404 9 aidoag [e10)
"WRO0 03 JO SaouBLeA
puadsiano Joulw ale a1ayl (WEZL'03) JO Spuadsiapun adI0OM
"Aju0 JeaA-u a5 Spuadsiapun 33J0pUoAN “12aA xau jAueiodwal Ag 1asyo Buieq si siy L "WELO'03 4O IBJUIOYS B Ujim paAsiyde
lin} u paadiyoe aq o) pajoadxe ale saoualyie ayy [Ajesed Buisg se papodes Bulq si Asusoe Jebpnq g1/5102 v|[(280°0) (960°0) S92'¢C 19€°2 aoueutd ajesodio)d
(W2 10°03) JO sadueueA puadsuapun Jouiw ale a1sy) (wgGlL 03)
jo spuadssapun assopuom Agq 1esyo Ajemued Buieq ase spuadsiano
9s8Y] "W0Z0'03 JO IBMYOS pue WEp0'03 Jo aaneg Buusegsig g
‘Aju0 JesA-ui aJe spuadsiapun 3210I0AN IEA 1Xau|aInsoosIg 3Y) UO puadsIBAD UB SI BJaY) S} 0} UOIIPPE Ul ‘Sjqensilyoe
finy U1 paAaiyoe aq 0} pajaadxa aJe Saualdlye ayLfjou se papodas Bulag st wgpy 0F jo Aouaioie 196png gi/5102 v|(920'0)  |(eE00)  |ogze £92'2 QORYH
s82IN0SaYy P ddoay
000°0 000°0 LEE'YS LEE'V8 sjooyng jejoL
“M3IABI 0) anuhuo) ‘80UELeA ON{000°0 0000 LEG'E LE6'E SIIAIDG UCISNiOU|
uoneanp3 Bunuiuon
"M3|ABI 0) 3NURUCD ‘9duBLIBA ONJ000'0 0000 £88°GE £88'SE ? 61-p1 'Aepuooag
. uol}eaNpy SIeaA
"MBIAB) 0) 3NUIUCD ‘3oUBUEA ON|000°0 0000 LISy LiSvp Aueg g Alewud
S|00Yyog
(w3) {wsz) (w3) (w3)
JUOW 6png
nbay uo asueuep Jofepy jo esneg| H Y 8suepe, wnang ot LTV
painbey uopoy uep Jofep § 3| esuepep HBA | Doosford | poesmey ]

Z Xipuaddy

AUVWWNOS - 21 HLNOW

Page 52



9i1°0 v10°0 S8L'8 [574%] B3UBLIBACY [R1I0L
JU2.1IN291 3q 0} PaJadxa 10U S| PUILSIBAQ ‘SadjueueA JOUIN|SLOO (y€00)  [269Y 9¢Lt 191
awabeuepy
‘JUBLIND3) 8q 0) pa1dadxa Jou S| puAdSIBAQ ‘saoueueA JouNi010'0 0100 581°0 GSIL0 spi0oay
“Juaunoal aq o) pajoadxa Jou S| puadsiapun sooueleA Jouin(0500)  |(8200)  [L14D 6820 Hoddng ssauisng
‘jealk
IX3U {jn} W) PaAayoeR aq o) paioadxa si Aoualolys (Wi 00°03) J0 pusdsispun Jouiuw B pue g1/GL0Z WyIm waLL 03
ay| UaLNIaJ 3G 0} Paladxe Jou St puadsiaa0|jo Aousiola UB JO JUSWBABIYDEB-UOL 8Ul O} 8np S| puadsiano SIHLISLLD 5110 €520 8EL0 JuswaINd0Ld
"JuaLNda1 aq 0} pajJadxa Jou St puadsiapun “saoueueA JOUIN|(900°0) (900°0) olvo 91’0 1PNy jewsiy|
"S33UBLIBA JOUIW O} aNp S| (WZED 03)
JeAlj0 puadsispun uy 1@bpng SLFLOZ BUl ulkm paalbe sem youm
XU |INj Ui PAASIYOE g 0) padadxa si Aousiows syt jwpl L 03 Jo Asuaioya ue Buwayoe ul Aejap e anp S puadsiano 8yl (z8o0 8700 Ge6°1 106°% S30IAI3S JNeIsoWwa(]
‘W E0"03F JO Saoueuea Joulw ale aray) “sabieyo soay yaseas
(MoT) saisibay sabiey pueT [B20T JO Spunjal 1o seuedwod yaless
jeuosiad woy swie yum Guyjesp ul Paunoul SISO 0] LORNQUU0D
‘Ju84IN331 3q 0) pajdadxa Jou st pusdsispun|e se (WzZE0 03) J0f papieme Uaag Sey JUBUILLBACS YSIBM Wwos) el v|(210°0) (190°0) 6050 0L9°0 sao1nag [eba
IJuLusaa0g
(w3) (urz) {w3) (w3)
L} tpuoly wnng 18bpng
ainbay uo| asusue, asne 8duepe, ]
painbay uofoy LEA JOfeIN JO BSNBD| 0 e n HeA | bepefosd | posiey NSRS

Z xipusddy

AYVYWINNS - 21 HLNOW

Page 53



abueyn

(esz'0) [{est0) [vev'e £19'6 jevapesueBio [moL
"(wge0°03) 10
s|eaw [00UDS U jeidn pasealou) Wol) 12618 SUodUl BACGE PUE JBAO
"M3IAB) 0} BNURUOD paiediayue awoou; jeuonippe pue suoisiaoid jo Buuojuow njaiedi{912'0) (560°0) 655°L 9L Sa2IAIBS Sanoe
"MBIABI 0] SNURUOD ‘aaueleA oN|000 0 0000 0000 0000 saoinleg Buuaaulbuly
‘Jeak [erouBUY JUILIND aY) Ul SBAIaSal Ul sa3j ubisag
10 %0z 1°03 dn uanib sey aouas ay) ‘Buibieys
23) 4O poyiaw mau e vl Bunsal *anjonsal
e 0] 123[gns st aonIas 8] 0S|y aiqeableyd
UOU 3JB 4Oy PBUOCISSILULLIOD UB3( AABL SHIOM - Buipunj aanewaye ybnaiyy
Ajnqises; aiow Se |eRloys e aq Aiejualod jim asayl| 1ew usaq sey asyjo Aenp syeuuo) Jo uoiyowap ay) o bugeas sisod
134 1XBU J3ABMOY ‘UONE)DadXa alooul papsadxa| pajoefoid Jo (wWZ20°03) "PayNUapl usaq saey 1abiel awooul pajabpng Aoaugynsuon
aaey ubisaq pue asueuaiiepy Jeal jeoueuy SIy | ay} Jano sasj asusuajuiey pue uliisaq |euciippe Jo (Wsp0 03)1{001°0) {z11°0) rAL A 6297 w ubisaqg Auadoid
"MBiAB) 0} anuue) "SUI0DUI [EJUB] 31B)S8 |el)Snpul Ul JjBJLIOUS WOED' I PE0 0 0£0°0 (£82°0) (€18°0) Sajeis3 g uolien|ep
‘MalAR) 0} anuluo) “S8JUBUBA JOUINIS00°0 G000 €200 8L0'0 sjessy Aunwwogy
(wg20°03) Jo sbuaes 1soo sapddns
"mainal 0 anunuonle sasiwaid Ag jasyo anssaid swooul yuu 82| apiIsaag WQL0'03{{800°0) {500°0) 110 220y S30IAIRSG BINSIT
‘M31ABI 0} anujuoy “aoueuen oNj(100'0) 0000 9920 9920 S8AIY2JY Ajuno)
*MBIAB) 0} BNURUOY) “9oUBLIEA ON{Z00 0 0000 $90°0 900 B0IAI2S SWNBSNN
*£1/81.0Z Buunp pajuawsiduwy
aq [m LOIYM SIBJSUBS | YD) YIM PAJBIDOSSE SIS0D 4o sjusAg
-auo jo 10adsal Ul Wwep 03 piemio) Auuea o) jsenbay 9 aINYNY) 'Sy
“MBIABI 0] BNURUCD ‘SITJUBUBA JOUIW| LOO0 (2000 994°L €4} g Sauesql Agnd
abueyn jeuopesjuebio,
(w3) {w3) (w3) (w3)
pasnbey uogoy aouepe Jofe jo esneg| br BUOW | o p e, | WNHNO w6png a
uep Jofei § 3 souepep UBeA paioafoid posiaey iAlag

Z Xipusddy

AHVYWAINS - 21 HLNOW

Page 54



(8s1'0) [(zzL0) |s962 180°¢ s3Agnaaky japg 1BI0L
‘wob0'03 40
SaJUBLERA PUBSIIAO JOUIW BJe 813U "SJUSWaIIUI paleRl doueulopad
so; pemnbas 1a6png ayr o) Bune@s (wgp0'03) Jo pusdssapun
-Ajuo 1eah-ul aglue s1 asay) (wgza03) jo swawsalby Bupung 8i0D Ul UOKONP3)

o1 pajoadxa ase (wze0'03) Jo sBuimes sakojdwis ay [e osie pue (wze0'03) JO sbulaes aoJopuom o) anp s puadsiepun ay1 |(g61°0)  |(z2L'0)  [S96Z LBOE SaAIN0AX3 §AIND

saanoex3 Jajy )

(ur3) (ur3) (w3) (w3)
nba; aosueyeA lofe asne L 2JueLe, wnano jebpng a2
pasnbay uopoy eA lofep o 0 85:;: VEA | neyeford | pesimey nasg

7 Xipuaddy

AYVYANNS - 21 HINOW

Page 55



(2671}

{zie1)

§80°05Z

LSY°1SE

Jviol

(880°L)

(901°1)

88612

$¥60'Ee

aoueut4 ajBI0dio)
g jenua] jejoL

‘M3IAal Japun daay
‘mainal Japun dasy

"M3IAB4 O} BNURLOD

‘MBIAD) Japun dasy)
‘Burnoal-uou Si SWoU! SIY |
'ss920.4d 186pnqg £ 1/9102 Jo Ued se passasppy

‘ssa00id 186png £ 1/910Z JO Wed se passaippy
‘M3JA2J 0} BNuUuUoY

"mMainas sapun daay

‘suondQ Buoueurd ayesodio)

‘ABa1eng aoueul4 ULIB | LWINIPAA JO Yed Se pamaiaay

-uoisod siy) paieBiw sey YD Jo manay

"WZ L0 03 JO SSOUBLEBA JOUIN

‘a}IS YO10ApUES - PI SIEDNNS J8LLI0)

0Ol UONB}aJ Ul WAGE'03F JO SIs00 pojabpnqun 'paliwy aum / 4O 8uo
(w/y0°03) J0 9L/SL

U SUOISSIWS P3oNPal JO JINSal B Se S3JUBMOjly UOQIED Painpay
(wip003)

sebiey] yjueg slelodsod 0} uones Ul Jeak sy} jo siapenb aasy)
uo a61eYD OU PBAISDRY "AYO HPNY SSBAN HIM MBIABS JBpUN SI SiY)
(wes0'03) 186pNg uey) Jamoj aq o} pajediolue ale s394 JPNY [ewaqg
{w161°03)

13A3[IUN J0) MRIAGY JUBY JO )jNsal e Se awodul patoafoid uey JaybiH
(47 pung buia
Juspuadapu| 8y} 0} uoneR) Uy (WOE'03) SaIouSkdIe PayUap! O auQ
Jeal ul
s|qeaaiyoeun paJapisuod WOOE 03 JO ASuaoy] S2J0I0M Palewns]

‘wgz0 03 Jo puadsiano 91/G10g Patdalosd sisuoio)

WG '0F pun) uoisuad 0} UCNGIALD Jo AIan023J-13pun pajoaiold

"SuoNqUIL02
jeuomppe Jo sisoa  pajedpiue  ueyy Jemo| oF anp (Wgie'03)
maInay [euenjoy uoisudd (WeZL'03) Jesk jusund pue (woyz 03)
Jeak snoinasd wolp uone|u| pIEpUBIS UON pasnun jo 3sduejeg

-JoBpng ays Ojul JING SIS02 1saIBYUI Woyy sBues uue} woys vy Buninsal
‘pauueld uey) Jeig} s ainyipuadxa [ENIdED SB Bk [RISUBUY SIU} MOLOG
0} pasu ou S| 218Y) 'JAASMOH "W(0QY'03 APRlewixcidde jo sa1DuBDYS
Ui uononpas e 0} sajenba sy suondwnsse |euibuc (je uo paseg )9S
sem j1a6png ay) saye pabueyd JUNoWE JUBWSIeS ay] - bujpueuid VYH

(880°1)

(90L°t)

886 LC

¥60'EC

soueuld
alelodio] g |esusn

asueuld
aesodicn 9 [eHUIY

pasnbay uopoy

asuBURA Jofely JO asned

(w3)
LI Yion

souepeA

(w3)
asuepep

(w3)
wnyno

pa)ossfoid

(ur3)
186png

pesiaey

ELITNETS

ZXipu

AHYANNS - 2L HLNOW

Page 56



2015/16 Efficiencies Month 12 - Under gor Qver Achleved

Portfolio

People & Resources

Review of specialist finance funclions lo identify efficiencies in process
Ensure continuation of grant maximisation opportunities identified in
201415

Review of specialist human resources functions to identify efficiencies in
process

Appendix 3

Total People & Resources

g_gvgrnance

Procurement Supplier Charging

Central an rporate Finance
Workforce efficiency proposal
Central Loans and Investment Review

Total Central & Corporate Finance

Sociai Servi
Develop means testing approach for minor adaptations
Review model/costs contracts for catering

Rationalise the number of sites where In-House short term care is
provided

Develop a ‘progression’ model for Supported Living
Revisw commissioning with Action for Children
Regional approach to advocacy

Review and realign funding to voluntary sector

Total Social Services

Community & Enterprise

Close the personal answering service for main switchboard telephone
Weilfare Rights Team Review

Community Centres

Community Based Accommodation Support Service
Telecare Charging

Stopping sending remittance advices to Landlords
In-house bailiff service

Removal of Post Office as payment option

Review Single Person Discount

Senior Management Restructure

Total Community & Enterprise

Streatscene & Transportation

introduce non-generic Streetscene roles (3 year plan)

Rationalise HRC Siles

Remaving the Waste Conlainers delivery service

Introduce Charge for 2nd Garden Waste Bin

Develop Energy Production al Landfili

Cease real lime information system at bus stops

Charge Maintenance of Bus Shelters to Community & Town Councils
Remove Demand Respansive Transport & review all other subsidised rout
Externalise grass culling service

Reduced Street Lighting resource

Remove second grass cut for highway verges

Car Parking Charges

Part night street lighting in residential areas

Winter Mainlenance {Car Parks and standard)

Reduce Cleansing standards zero tolerance litter

Total Streetscene & Transportation

Planning & Environment

Stafiing & Management Restructure (incl. all vacancies)
Staffing & Collaboration

Animal & Pest Conlro!

Increased Planning Fees (15% WG increase)

Increase in number of Planning Applications

Additional elements of charging (discharge of conditions)
Tatal Planning & Environment

Total 2015/16 Budget Efficlencies
Total Projected 2015/16 Budget Efficiencles Underachieved
Total Projected 2015/16 Budget Efficiencies Achieved

; {Under)/Over
Qriglinal Efficiency Revised Efficiency Achievement
2015/16 2015/16 201516
£(m) £(m) £(m)
0.170 0.166 (0.004)
0.100 0.081 (0.019)
0.105 0.000 (0.108)
0.375 0.247 (0.128)
0.116 0.000 (0.116)
0.116 0.000 (0.116)
0.300 0.000 (0.300)
1.830 1.230 (0.600)
2.130 1.230 {0.800)
0.100 0.000 (0.100)
0.050 0.000 {0.050)
0.075 0.110 0.035
0.250 0.145 (0.105)
0.075 0.015 {0.060)
0.053 0.000 {0.053)
0.203 0.065 (0.138)
0.806 0.335 (0.471)
0.099 0.125 0.026
0.020 0.035 0.015
0.048 0.096 0.048
0.030 0.090 0.060
0.200 0.13% (0.061)
0.054 0.013 (0.041)
0.100 0.070 {0.030)
0.028 0.017 (0.011)
0.150 0.270 0.120
0.100 0.074 (0.026)
0.829 0.929 0.100
0.080 0.115 0.035
0.400 0.240 (0.160)
0.150 0.100 (0.050)
0.050 0.025 (0.025)
0.050 0.000 (0.050)
0.020 0.025 0.0058
0.005 0.000 (0.005)
0.075 0.050 (0.025)
0.075 0.025 (0.050)
0.050 0.038 (0.013)
0.030 0.025 (0.008)
0.400 0.290 (0.110)
0.020 0.030 0.010
0.150 0.170 0.020
0.150 0.060 (0.080)
1.705 1.193 {0.513)
0.295 0.207 (0.088)
0.024 0.040 0.018
0.030 0.007 (0.023)
0.135 0.050 (0.085)
0.060 0.030 {0.030)
0.050 0.025 (0.025)
0.594 0.359 (0.235)
G/O E
100 12.874
18 2.262
82 10.612

Page 57



Page 58



APPENDIX 4

Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2015

Less - Base Level

Total Reserves above base level available for
delegation to Cabinet

Less - Allocation from the Contingency
Reserve for the costs of the speed limit review

Less - Allocation from the Contingency
Reserve for the contribution to meet the
estimated increase in levy required to meet
past and future claim liabilities in relation to
the former Municipal Mutual Insurance
company

Less - Allocation from the Contingency
Reserve to meet the resource requirements
for specialist social work for child protection
Less — Allocation from the Contingency
Reserve to renew invest to save finds to
support organisational change

Plus projected underspend as at Month 12

Total projected Contingency Reserve as at
31t March 2016

Page 59

£m £m

10.515

(5.769)

4.746

(0.210)

(0.800)

(0.100)

(0.750)

1.372

4.258



Page 60



‘ueld

ssauisng yYyH ay) vl ssnuoud
auyy jo suo st siyL Buynpayog

qor Jo uogejuaiwa|duy
ayl punj 0} £1/9102 O}

PIEMIO) paLLIED Bq [ WHbZ 03
jo uopeooyje 186png 91/5L02 ¥

‘S3[0UBIDYIS JOUIW JBY)0 0} sajefel (WQEQ 03) Bulewss sy

‘sigaA snownald yim auy w (W | 1°03) AQ puadsiapun o} 195 ale sabieyoay
‘WGEGN 0F Ag pasesIoul SeY anIassy SouUBINSU|

‘WZZ0 03 1509 0} pajosioid 1y J0j juawdinba Bunjiom )by
‘puadsiepun

{wpzl 03) € pasyess Sey Sadas pue sjuawpedap SS0I0B S3Uejes JO UoNNGLRSIPaY
'S82UDI9JU0D puUE ADSUR)NSUCD 0} S3B(BI puadsiapun pajasiosd syl 4o (WeZ0 03)
"puadsiapun (W0 03)

e $9SE8al annieg uswApuey ay) Buuaayap Joj uonoasfoid ay) jo [eacway

uoddng

(12°0)

{9vZ'0)

3184

leve

yoddng g aoueud

*SADUBLIEA JOUIW O)

sajejos weLo 03 Buiuiewas ay) "sabieyoas awodu; paAsIyoeUn 0) SANBBI W /0°03
'S)S00 193} pue podsued) uo ainssaid e 0] saieRt WzZy 03

‘pusdsiapun siy) 0} paingLILEd sey BuuoyuoLL NyaIed pue 1eak isey o) Buefes
aseys woid WEZO 03 “S|Eusjew o) se)ejas puadsiapun pajoaioid au Jo (w80 03)
‘a1e0s Jo doj ay; je Bunabpnq pue SaIDUEDEA

ieak-u jo }NSal € Se sauees 0) sajejas puadsiapun pajosioid ay Jo (Wyze 03)

(51£°0)

{as2°0)

8i1'8

P6E8

ajueudjuie|y g siieday

"S81DUaIoNjS JOUIW JBY)0 O] SAlel (Wig L0 03) bUllieladl sl

'SB0IAJES USPIES) U0 3injipuadxa jeuonippe 0} sajejal Wogo 03

‘puads |BNJOE SA PaiaA0dsa) U3aq Sey Jeym uo

paseq wgL0'03 Ag asu 0} paoadxa aie snjdins JAlEM 3} UM PaJBIDOSSE S1S00 3|
‘£ Jayenb u) uoyoaloid saipes

ue o} paseduiod pua Jeak Je se jqap pabe Jo WwnPNo [eul ay} UC PasSEq SWOdU|
U3y Joj uoisiaold Jaap peq pajoadxa ay) Ul Juawisnipe ue o sajejal (WESZ 03)

(0zz'0)

(ezz0)

(009°62)

(£2£°62)

awoou| Jusy

*S3OUBLIEA JOUIW JaY)0 0} Saje|al w03 Suluewss sy

(wz10°03) jo Buines e payNguUIuod Sey SWIaYISs SANUBDU| SjuBUS |

*S3010AUI jO JuawAed uou 0} anp WELE 03 JO anssaid e ajeald sHIom a|qeadleyasy
(WwggQ'03) JO puadsiapun UB P3INGLILOD aAey sabiey) 0JI) pueE SIS0D HN0Y
'sjs09 Buguud uo puadsiapun ue o} sajes (WZL0°03)

*S}S09 Atejes uo puadsiapun ue o} saje|ss (W80 03)

{501°0)

(€11°0)

12s’L

PE9’L

awabeuepy s1e)sy

pasjnbay uopoy

8oUBLIEA JO 8sNE)

{w3)
thuow
158
asuepep

{w3)

ELITEITTYY

(w3)

wnyno
paydefoid

{w3)

108png
pasjAsy

EETTNET

S Xipuaddy

Z1 Pouad - Hoday 9oueHEA JOlEN VaH

Page 61



(g600)  [{eso0) Wwio ¥EZ'0 s o)

“pasijeuy aJe sjuswabuese Buipuny aouo abueyd Aew adueleq SiyL

‘pua 1234 JE paroadxa sabieyoas Suoueul jeudeD psonpal ay) o) sajeal (w281 03)

sabuey|d sjsaseiul

AJessa0auun SPIOAB pue suyiuow z1 Joj Bumouog sAejsp Aem siy sisod Buipung
“Jutj-4 Ul SB)IS SE3T PUE SHIEAA BY) JOj SISO LIOHIOWSP SPIEMO} 3INqUIL0T [Im SIYL (a1ebaib6e)
-ainyipuadxa [ejides spiemo} paINALIL0D d0uUB(eq |BUORIPPE 8U) O) Sajelds UL/ 03]025°0 ¥25'0 86491 v42°91 SadueUeA JBUyI0
"Apisgng Buisno o} bunejas Juauisnipe ypne jsod e o) sejeds wezi 032210 4451} (1454} 000°C Apisqns vuH

515090 Jeak |ny jo 1diaoal uo (WEQD 03) A padnpal sey asil SpPIuaA

"MJOM 10j0BAUO0D YBnosy)

WOG0 03 §0 ainssasd Jead-uj ue Ul pajnsal SeY S)S0D BaIe [BUNLLILIOD JO MBIABE Y

*SJS09D JOJDEJUOD

J5MO| pUE SBIUBDEA JB)S 0} anp (W90 03) Aq Juadssapun aaey sabiey) uapied

‘1509 pajoadxaun

ue SEM UDIYM W90 03 JO Junowe ay) wi abieys e panienal aAeY pund {1DUNOD WoJ)
VH a4 oju1 1yBnoig S34uad AJIUNWWD au Joj $1500 Apnn pue sabieyo BuesioleLL o 6LL0 100°'L 2880 S9IMAS plojpue]

(w3) (w3} (w3} (w3)
yjuow
pasjnbay uopay 83UBHEA jO 3sNE) jse asuepep Lnuno 1eBpng ELITNETS
asuepep pajosfoid pasiasy

g xjpusddy

Z1 pouad - Hodoy soueueA JoleN ViH

Page 62



Appendix 6

CARRY FORWARD REQUESTS 2015/16

GOVERNANCE

ICT — Education ICT - to contribute to the funding of enhanced communication links commitment given
to schools (£0.003m) (in addition to the amount agreed in the month 10 report)

ICT — Public Sector Broadband Aggregation — To safeguard against the risk of historic infrastructure
costs {£0.220m)

ICT - fnvestment Costs - Balance remaining from Business Plan investment requirements to fund
organisational change in 2016/17 (£0.227m)

Democratic Services - to fund the final instalment for the transiation of the Council’s Constitution
{£0.008m)

Democratic Services —in relation to improvements to Members ICT systems (£0.032m)

ICT — Capita One — this is a regionally funded service whereby any balance (which forms part of the
regional service delivery) is required to be retained by the project {£0.090m)

ICT — Digital Print — to fund specialist IT technical expertise to implement additional self-service
modules and migration form design (£0.003m)

ICT - Communication lines — for new lines to be installed to reduce the cost of calls (£0.010m)

ICT - Public Sector Broadband Aggregation — due to implementation delays linked with the
introduction of Learning in Digital Wales {LiDW) project {£0.310m)

COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE

Council Fund Housing — delays caused by negotiation of costs will mean the purchase of alarms will
be made in 2016/17 (£0.025m)

Housing Programmes - in respect of ongoing works at Travellers sites which will continue into 2016/17
{£0.027m)

ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE

Public Libraries & Arts, Culture & Events — to contribute to one off costs associated with Community
Asset Transfers (CAT) which wilt be implemented during 2016/17 (£0.043m)

STREETSCENE & TRANSPORTATION

School Transport - in addition to the £0.040m approved in the month 10 report (£0.090m)

Local Transport Grant - for carriageway improvement works which have taken place in April 2016
(£0.020m)

Page 63



Appendix 6

Street works — to fund any further expenses the Authority may incur relating to a historic claim
(£0.010m)

SOCIAL SERVICES

Social Services — to support the provision for Social Enterprise initiatives across the portfolio
(£0.069m)

Page 64



Agenda Iltem 6

Sir y Fflint
"5!&!3!3!3.?@

CORPORATE RESROUCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Thursday, 16 June 2016
Report Subject Project Closure on Review of Corporate Administration
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management
Report Author Chief Officer (Governance)
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The review of Corporate Administrative functions began in October 2013. Job
Evaluation Questionnaires (JEQ'’s) produced for single status were analysed to
identify the profile of posts that could be classes as “administrative”. At that time
there were 278 across the council as a whole. Work then began to identify the
tasks undertaken by those posts. Where these tasks duplicated corporate council
systems they were stopped. If the tasks were overly complex or bureaucratic then
the processes were streamlined. In addition the project has produced a generic
JEQ for the administrative team members and team leaders. This promotes
flexibility, increases equity across the organisation and reduces the risk of
employees seeking salary regrading based on comparison with other posts
undertaking similar functions.

At the same time the posts, which were often widely dispersed, were brought into
teams that served each portfolio (with a single team serving the whole of corporate
services). The final stage (which is the subject of a separate agenda item) is to
bring the remaining portfolio teams into a combined service that serves the County
Hall and Flint offices with an additional central team at the Alltami depot.

Overall the number of administrative posts has reduced to 66 as at June 2016.
This has saved a total of £1.133m.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That Committee provides any comments to Cabinet on the savings and
benefits delivered by the project and the proposed steps to close the
project.

Page 65



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLANINIG THE PROJECT

1.01

In October 2013 there were approximately 278 administrative posts with in

the council based on analysis of single status JEQ'’s (it must be stressed

this figure had not been verified). Over the course of the project some

posts have been taken out of scope for the following reasons:

e single status appeals meant they were no longer defined as
administrative;

e the Street scene employees formed a separate project; and

e grant and HRA funded posts because they would not generate any
savings

e posts that were so specialised or technical that it would not make
sense to separate them from the team they support

1.02

In order to reduce the need for administrative support there was a parallel
review of processes. Where tasks duplicated corporate processes they
were simply stopped. Also, a number of key corporate processes were
streamlined and automated as follows:
1. staff with an IT account input their own mileage claims directly onto
Trent rather than paper forms being manually input by admin staff;

2. Absence forms can be completed electronically and emailed to
managers rather than completing paper forms;

3. Staff that use Etarmis to record their time can now use it to monitor
their leave rather than admin staff having to keep team records; and

4. EDM has been introduced in a number of service areas such as
Human Resources, Licensing, Neighbourhood Housing in order to
streamline the way we hold information.

1.03

Within each portfolio generic administrative posts were brought into a
single team enabling an overall reduction in posts and increasing overall
resilience. All these posts have already been put on to a generic
Business Support Assistant JEQ so that they have the same duties and
also the same salary, thereby increasing equity and removing some
inequality in grading.

1.04

The final stage of the project is to bring the portfolio teams together under

a single manager and this is the subject of a separate report on the

agenda. If the proposals in that report are agreed then there are a

number of key actions to close the project as set out below:

¢ HR related tasks associated with bringing together a single team under
a single manager

e Budgetary realignment so that the necessary funding follows the
employees

e Capturing savings and ensuring that they are not double counted

e A programme of training and experience sharing is required to ensure
that the combined team is able to provide a more resilient service

Page 66




1.05 |There is a project team which contains both HR and finance
representatives. The project team has drawn up an action plan for the
completion of the tasks outlined above. Project management support and
chief officer oversight are available to resolve problems and ensure that
the action plan keeps to timetable.

1.06 | Although this particular project will be closed, the service will not, of
course, remain static. The review of customer service that is currently
underway might have an impact on the reception duties of the
administrative team. Likewise, the creation of the Integrated Transport
Unit could lead to travel booking being centralised. Lastly, there is also a
commitment in the Council’s organisational change policy to review all
restructures after 12 months to ensure that they are functioning as
intended.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | The project has generated the following permanent savings, which are net
of project management costs.

Financial Saving (£)
TOTAL 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18*
1,133,342 193,875 584,492 301,000 43,610 10,365
*The 2017/18 savings relate to the full year effect of the positions identified
in 2016/17.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | All affected employees and their unions have been consulted.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | The project has a risk register that is routinely updated. A larger
centralised administrative team is more resilient and so is able to provide
greater guarantee of service continuity in case of absence. The risk of skill
loss can also be mitigated through a programme of sharing skills and
experience with team members.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | None

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None

Page 67




Contact Officer: Gareth Owens, Chief Officer (Governance)
Telephone: 01352 702344
E-mail: gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Job Evaluation Questionnaire (JEQ) — the document used to draw up a
profile of each post as part of job evaluation analysing the skills,
knowledge, experience necessary for and the demands placed on the post
holder by the role.

Page 68



mailto:gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk

Agenda Item 7

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%!z.ire

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Thursday 16 June, 2016
Report Subject Forward Work Programme
Cabinet Member N/A
Report Author Member Engagement Manager
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine the
Forward Work programme of the Committee of which they are Members. By
reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues. A copy of the Forward Work
Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which has been
updated following the last meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward
Work Programme for the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

1 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme and
approve/amend as necessary.

2 That the Member Engagement Manager, in consultation with the Chair and
Vice-Chair of the Committee be authorised to vary the Forward Work
Programme between meetings, as the need arises.

Page 69



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.01 Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number
of sources. Members can suggest topics for review by Overview &
Scrutiny Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can
be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council
or Chief Officers. Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet
Work Programme and the Improvement Plan.

1.02 | In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of
significance’ to be applied. This can be achieved by asking a range of
questions as follows:

1. Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
2. Is it an area of major change or risk?

3. Are there issues of concern in performance?

4. Is there new Government guidance of legislation?

5. lIs it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators/Internal Audit?

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 None as a result of this report.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | None as a result of this report.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 — Draft Forward Work Programme

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None.

Contact Officer: Robert Robins

Member Engagement Manager
Telephone: 01352 702320
E-mail: robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 70



mailto:robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of
the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Page 71




This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2016/17

Forward work Programme

Approval and development

DATE O&S Focus REPORT FROM
Thursday, 14t July | LSB and strategic Partnerships Performance — end Assurance Karen Armstrong
2016 of year report
10.00

Use of Consultants — update from the March Assurance Chief Executive &
meeting) Gary Ferguson
Year end Improvement Plan Monitoring reports Assurance and comment Robert Robins
Year end Chief officer Performance reports. Monitoring Robert Robins
Welsh Language Standards Information Fiona Mocko
T Revenue Budget Monitoring 15/16 — outturn Monitoring Sara Dulson
Forward Work Programme Approval and development Robert Robins
~
U"Thursday, 15t Community Safety Partnership annual report (This is | Assurance and comment Sian Jones
September 2016 meeting is designated as a statutory crime &
10.00 disorder scrutiny committee meeting)
Revenue Budget monitoring 2016/17 Monitoring Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

Thursday, 13t
October 2016
10.00

Revenue Budget monitoring 2016/17

Forward work Programme

Monitoring

Approval and development

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

Page 1 of 4



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2016/17

Thursday 10t

Revenue Budget monitoring 2016/17

Monitoring

Sara Dulson

%J

decision will be made at a later stage as to which are
fo be used.

November 2016

10.00 Forward work Programme Approval and development Robert Robins
Thursday, 8t Revenue Budget monitoring 2016/17 Monitoring Sara Dulson
December 2016

10.00 Forward work Programme Approval and development Robert Robins
Friday, 16t At the Annual Meeting, when the schedule of

December 2016 meetings for 2016/17 was approved, we had

10.00 Budget identified the specific slots for budget meetings for all

meeting committees in both December and January. A

“Monday, 19t
December 2016
14.00

At the Annual Meeting, when the schedule of
meetings for 2016/17 was approved, we had
identified the specific slots for budget meetings for all
committees in both December and January. A
decision will be made at a later stage as to which are
to be used.

This is a budget process ‘mop up’ meeting and
capital programme (All Members will be invited to
this meeting)

Thursday, 12t
January 2017
10.00

Revenue Budget monitoring 2016/17

Forward work Programme

Monitoring

Approval and development

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

Page 2 of 4



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2016/17

Friday 20t At the Annual Meeting, when the schedule of
January 2017 meetings for 2016/17 was approved, we had
10.00 budget identified the specific slots for budget meetings for all
Meeting committees in both December and January. A
decision will be made at a later stage as to which are
to be used.
Friday, 27t At the Annual Meeting, when the schedule of
January 2017 meetings for 2016/17 was approved, we had
10.00 identified the specific slots for budget meetings for all
committees in both December and January. A
decision will be made at a later stage as to which are
to be used.
This is a budget process ‘mop up’ meeting and
capital programme (All Members will be invited to
éj this meeting)
@D
~
an
Items to be Health and Well-being update Information
scheduled
Customer services and Call-handling update Information

Page 3 of 4



9/ obed

Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2016/17

Page 4 of 4



Agenda Iltem 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Council Fund Revenue Budget 2017/18
	Enc. 1 - Corporate Services Business Plan Proposed Efficiencies

	5 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 12)
	Enc. 1 for REVENUE BUDGE MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 12)

	6 Project Closure on Review of Corporate Administration
	7 Forward Work Programme
	Enc. 1 for Forward Work Programme (Corporate Resources)

	8 Establishment Structure in Governance
	Enc. 1 - Proposed Structure for Governance portfolio
	Enc. 2 - Proposed Structure for Legal Services

	9 Review of Corporate Administrative Functions

